
Date Published:1 September 2021     

Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee

Friday 10 September 2021 at 10.00 am

Cabinet Suite - Shire Hall, Gloucester

AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES 

To note any apologies. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

2  MINUTES (Pages 1 - 8)

To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 16 July 2021. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

3  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive any pecuniary or personal interests from members. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

SCRUTINY ITEMS

4  COMMUNITY RISK MANAGEMENT PLAN (Pages 9 - 52)

To consider and comment on the draft Community Risk Management 
Plan. 

Mark Preece

5  HMICFRS UPDATE (Pages 53 - 64)

To receive a presentation on the HMICFRS inspection process, and to 
update on the GFRS response to the findings of its 2019 inspection.

Mark Preece

6  GFRS PERFORMANCE DATA AND UPDATES (Pages 65 - 86)

To consider the latest GFRS performance data and to receive any 
updates. 

Clive Webber

WORK PLANNING



    

7  WORK PLAN 2021/22 (Pages 87 - 88)

To consider the Committee work plan and to suggest items for 
consideration at future meetings. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

8  FUTURE MEETINGS 

To note the dates of meetings for the remainder of 2021 and for 2022 (all 
meetings to start at 10am):

12 November 2021
14 January 2022
4 March 2022
27 May 2022
15 July 2022
2 September 2022
11 November 2022. 

Cllr Jeremy 
Hilton

Membership –  Cllr Bernard Fisher, Cllr Jeremy Hilton (Chair), Cllr Nick Housden (Vice-Chair), 
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-Charrington, Cllr Wendy Thomas, Cllr Brian Tipper and Cllr Pam Tracey MBE 

(a) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification about 
whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the Director of Policy, 
Performance and Governance, Rob Ayliffe 01452 328198 /fax: 425149/ e-mail: 
rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk) prior to the start of the meeting.

(b) INSPECTION OF PAPERS AND GENERAL QUERIES - If you wish to inspect minutes or 
reports relating to any item on this agenda or have any other general queries about the 
meeting, please contact: Laura Powick, Democratic Services Adviser 
:01452 324205/fax: 425850/e-mail: laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk

(c) GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

Please note that photography, filming and audio recording of Council meetings is 
permitted subject to the Local Government Access to Information provisions.  Please 
contact Democratic Services (tel 01452 425230) to make the necessary arrangements 
ahead of the meeting.  If you are a member of the public and do not wish to be 
photographed or filmed please inform the Democratic Services Officer on duty at the 
meeting.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the meeting please leave as 
directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the assembly point which is outside the main entrance to 
Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:rob.ayliffe@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:laura.powick@gloucestershire.gov.uk


- 1 -

FIRE AND RESCUE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee held on Friday 
16 July 2021 commencing at 2.00 pm at the Council Chamber - Shire Hall, 
Gloucester.

PRESENT

Cllr Jeremy Hilton (Chair)
Cllr Nick Housden (Vice-
Chair)
Cllr Mark Mackenzie-
Charrington

Cllr Wendy Thomas
Cllr Brian Tipper
Cllr Pam Tracey MBE

Substitutes:

Apologies:

In Attendance:

Cllr Bernard Fisher

Cllr David Norman, Cabinet Member for Public Protection, Parking 
and Libraries
Mark Preece, Interim Chief Fire Officer, GFRS
Clive Webber, Head of Business Planning and Performance, GFRS

1. WELCOME AND APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Cllr Bernie Fisher.

The Chair welcomed everyone to the first meeting of the newly established Fire and 
Rescue Scrutiny Committee. Members introduced themselves and stated their prior 
level of knowledge on the Committee’s remit.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

No declarations of interest were made at the meeting. 

3. TERMS OF REFERENCE 

The Chair advised members of the Committee’s terms of reference.

Following a query as to whether education fell within the Committee’s remit, 
members were informed that it did, coming under the umbrella term of ‘prevention’. 

4. OVERVIEW OF THE FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

Mark Preece, Interim Chief Fire Officer, provided the Committee with a presentation 
on the national picture for fire and rescue services. The presentation was published 
alongside the agenda papers for the meeting. 

An overview of the national governance arrangements for fire and rescue services 
was provided, along with a brief background to the Fire Reform programme which 
was introduced in May 2016. It was understood that the independent Fire 
Standards Board was established as part of this reform to ensure professional 
standards were coordinated nationally. 

It was noted that the State of Fire Report was published in 2019, introducing four 
recommendations which were set out in detail to the Committee. 

The Committee was advised that the consultative White Paper on fire services 
reform, which would be consulting on whether to mandate the transfer of fire and 
rescue functions to the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner model across England 
where boundaries were coterminous; on how to address coterminosity challenges, 
including in the South West; and on legislating to create operational independence 
for Chief Fire Officers, would likely be released in autumn 2021, although no date 
had been indicated. 

Members considered the potential reasons as to why there had been a delay to the 
consultative White Paper’s release. One member commented that the view of the 
LGA had been that any move to the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner model 
should be done only by the will of the local people and not mandated from above.

One member queried how members could be involved in the consultation process? 
It was understood that it would be an extensive consultation process and members 
would have the opportunity to be involved. 

One member asked how often fire and rescues services were inspected and by 
whom? In response, they were advised that Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of 
Constabulary and Fire & Rescue Services (HMICFRS) carried out full inspections 
every 12 to 18 months. These inspections were carried out over a 6 week period, 
however it was in reality a continual process. 

5. GLOUCESTERSHIRE FIRE AND RESCUE SERVICE 

Mark Preece continued with his presentation to provide members with an overview 
of the local fire and rescue service picture. 

Members were reminded of the governance arrangements for Gloucestershire Fire 
and Rescue Service (GFRS) and were shown a map highlighting the locations of 
the County’s 21 fire stations. Additionally, the mission and strategic aims of GFRS; 
an overview of the senior leadership team at GFRS; the service values of GFRS; 
and the financial context for the service were explained to the Committee. 

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

Members were provided with the workforce data for GFRS, which had been broken 
down by gender and ethnicity. It was noted that as of April 2019, there were 65 
female firefighters (whole-time and on-call) and 10 from minority ethnic 
backgrounds. It was understood that GFRS was continuing to work to improve this 
through positive action campaigns. 

Data was provided to the Committee regarding the activity of GFRS between April 
2020 and March 2021, which included attending 5100 incidents in total and 
completing 2144 Safe and Well visits. It was understood that the number of these 
visits was reduced during this time due to the Covid-19 pandemic. 

One member asked whether businesses also received Safe and Well visits? It was 
understood that businesses are categorised between low and high risk and that this 
determined how often they might be inspected. For example, Gloucestershire Royal 
Hospital might be inspected once or twice a year, whereas a local newsagent might 
only receive a visit once every 10 years.

The results of the HMICFRS Inspection 2018/19 were discussed with the 
Committee, in particular that two causes of concern had been identified relating to 
its fire safety strategy and the values and structure of the service. Work to address 
these was ongoing, however 11 new members of staff had been recruited to 
address concerns with fire safety, and new values had been introduced. 

GFRS was also subject to a number of internal audits which resulted in 118 audit 
recommendations. These had now been actioned, subject to sign off.

Members noted that the second HMICFRS Cause of Concern visit in February 2021 
had highlighted the positive progress and improvements that had been made, 
although acknowledged that more work needed to be done. It was explained that 
improvement was a journey and that it could take another 3 to 5 years before the 
service really made headway.

The Committee was provided with an overview of the response of GFRS to the 
Covid-19 pandemic, which had included ambulance driving; delivering PPE and 
medical samples; and delivering infection control and prevention training packages 
to care home staff. 

One member asked for clarification as to how the HMICFRS inspection is graded. 
In response to a further query on receiving the results of the next inspection in 
September this year, it was explained that the full report would not be released until 
spring 2022. 

The Cabinet Member for Public Protection, Parking and Libraries, Cllr Dave 
Norman, confirmed, in response to a query, that additional money from the Council 
budget had been allocated to GFRS for the last two years in order to increase 
recruitment. They also advised that the next HMICFRS inspection may still be 
tainted as a result of GFRS having to deal with two challenges: firstly, the 
challenging first HMICFRS inspection report, and secondly the historical internal 
audit issues. 

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

One member queried what had brought on the decline of the service? In response, 
it was understood that a number of issues had contributed including previous 
efficiency savings and management style and culture, as well as changes in 
legislation. 

Members discussed the limited scrutiny GFRS had received from scrutiny 
committees previously, and welcomed the opportunity to solely focus on properly 
scrutinising the fire and rescue service through this newly established committee. 

Mark Preece continued his presentation to discuss details regarding the Community 
Risk Management Plan (CRMP) and the Improvement Strategy. It was understood 
that the CRMP was currently being worked on and was made up of 8 objectives. It 
was noted that the CRMP would be presented at this Committee before it is 
considered by Cabinet. 

In response to a member query, it was explained that those identified as vulnerable 
were able to receive alarm fitting from GFRS. 

There was a further member query as to what GFRS was doing to meet its 
objective for recruiting more female and minority ethnic fire fighters? In response it 
was understood that GFRS was hosting open evenings and taster days, however it 
had to overcome a damaged reputation, and address the lack of understanding as 
to how racism affects individuals communities amongst the service. Cllr Norman 
explained that recruitment issues were affecting fire and rescue services across the 
Country and that we should be going into communities to engage rather than 
expecting them to come to us. 

The Committee noted that a members awareness session was being organised to 
take place in the autumn at the SkillZone. 

6. WORK PLAN 

The Committee agreed to add the following items to its work plan:

- Community Risk Management Plan (September meeting);
- Recruitment issues within the Fire Service, particularly relating to BAME 

(November meeting);
- Overview of the financial health of GFRS, including any pressures 

(November meeting);
- Consultative White Paper on fire services reform (additional meeting date to 

be arranged); and 
- HMICFRS inspection feedback (additional meeting date to be arranged with 

the item to be exempt).

It was agreed that a report on performance data and other updates would be 
brought to each Committee meeting for information.

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

7. FUTURE MEETINGS 

The Committee noted the future meeting dates. 

CHAIRPERSON

Meeting concluded at 3.45 pm

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee actions – 16 July 2021

Topic Action Responsibility Progress

149. Work Plan To add the following items to the Committee work 
plan:

- Community Risk Management Plan 
(September)

- Recruitment issues within the Fire Service, 
particularly relating to BAME (November)

- Overview of the financial health of GFRS, 
including any pressures (November)

- Consultative White Paper on fire services 
reform (additional meeting date to be 
arranged)

- HMICFRS inspection feedback (additional 
meeting date to be arranged – exempt 
item)

- Performance data and other updates (to be 
included on every meeting agenda)

Laura Powick Completed 

P
age 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Fire Scrutiny Board Meeting
22nd September 2021

Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service Draft Community Risk  Management 
Plan 2022-2025

Background

1 The Fire and Rescue National Framework sets out the Government’s priorities and 
objectives for Fire and Rescue authorities in England; a key priority is for the Fire and 
Rescue Authority (FRA) to develop a Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP). When 
developing the CRMP, the FRA should give due regard to the professional advice of the 
Chief Fire Officer.

2 In order to achieve the National Fire Chiefs Council (NFCC) Fire Standard, a standard 
expected of all Fire and Rescue Services in the creation of their CRMP’s, GFRS must:

 Utilise and share accurate data and business intelligence (from both internal and 
external sources) to support key activities such as evidenced-based decision 
making, horizon scanning, cross border risk identification and organisational 
learning;

 Ensure transparency in the community risk management planning process 
through either implementing and/or supporting ongoing engagement and formal 
consultation processes, ensuring these are accessible and publicly available;

 Ensure that organisational decisions and the measures implemented support 
equality, diversity, inclusivity, are non-discriminatory and are people impact 
assessed;

 Meet its legislative, framework and governance requirements linked to 
Community Risk Management;

 Be able to evidence its external and internal operating environment and the 
strategic objectives the community risk management plan is seeking to achieve;

 Identify and describe the existing and emerging local, regional and national 
hazards it faces, the hazardous events that could arise and the risk groups 
(People, Place, Environment and Economy) that could be harmed;

 Analyse risk, consider its risk appetite, determine the risk levels and prioritise 
risk accordingly;

 Make decisions about the deployment of resources based on the prioritised risk 
levels and planning assumptions involved. This should be carried out with 
consideration to internal and external resource availability (people, financial and 
physical) including collaborative, cross-border and national resilience assistance. 
Consideration should also be given to other strategic influences such as 
consultation feedback, stakeholder engagement and political objectives;

 Continually evaluate the effectiveness, efficiency and delivery of the community 
risk management plan and the organisational impact of risk management 
decisions;

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 Be able to clearly define who has overall accountability for the community risk 
management plan and responsibility for the various components contained within 
it; and

 Provide training and/or support (where required) to all who are involved in the 
development, management and implementation of the community risk 
management plan.

3 In June 2020, work commenced towards the delivery of the draft CRMP 2022-2025 with the 
following steps completed:

 An evidence based Risk Profile methodology for Prevention, Protection and 
Response.

 Creation of Community Risk Profiles for Prevention, Protection and Response, 
that included the review and collection of evidence from internal and external 
data sources.

 CRMP workshops with the Senior Leadership Team (SLT) and Senior 
Managers, each helping to inform different elements of the CRMP (alignment to 
Council plans and strategies, document structure, risk profiles, objective setting, 
consultation and engagement).

 A pre-engagement consultation with the public, staff and businesses before the 
first draft.

 Finalising of the objective setting with the Department Heads and Senior 
Managers.

 Production of an Equality Impact Assessment which supplements this paper.

4 Following this comprehensive process, the draft CRMP outlines the 8 objectives, which 
have been agreed by GFRS Senior Leadership Team, which will be delivered by the 
Service across the three-year life of the plan. These are:

Objective 1 – Prevention
Deliver intelligence informed person-centred and impactful prevention activities that 
effectively and efficiently improve the safety, health and wellbeing of the diverse people 
who live, work in or visit Gloucestershire.

Objective 2 – Protection
Deliver intelligence informed and impactful protection activities, to include inspections, 
audits, education and enforcement, which continue to reduce the likelihood and impact of 
fire in commercial buildings across Gloucestershire and reduce the risk to both the public 
and firefighters.

Objective 3 - Response Standards
Implement National Operational Guidance and approved National Fire Standards to 
assure and support operational competence, learning and preparedness.

Objective 4 - Response Arrangements
Review our existing arrangements to ensure that we have the required number of 
resources, with the right people and equipment, at the right time, in the right location.

Objective 5 - Digital, Data and Technology
Increase the use of data and business intelligence tools to ensure that we understand our 
risks and maximise the use of technology to respond appropriately to those risks.

Page 10



Objective 6 - People and Social Responsibility
Further improve our inclusive culture to ensure that we attract, retain, support and 
develop a diverse workforce, which is truly representative of our communities.

Objective 7 - Asset Management
Continue to provide the best facilities, vehicles, equipment and personal protective 
equipment (PPE) we can afford, enabling us to deliver a professional service to our 
communities.

Objective 8 – Collaboration
Collaboration is important in every organisation. We will collaborate by communicating 
with partners and building on ideas to innovate or do something differently in the public’s 
interest

A public consultation will run from 1 October 2021 to 26 November 2021. A survey will be 
conducted to capture the public’s views on the 8 strategic objectives within the CRMP in a 
Covid-19 safe manner. A detailed communications plan has been developed, but in broad 
terms, promotion will be through:

 GCC and GFRS social media;
 Paid social media and digital advertising
 Video and animation
 Media releases and other media opportunities
 E-mail marketing via GovDelivery
 Internal promotion to staff
 Council’s connected newsletter
 GCC Facebook page and twitter feed;
 During our Safe and Well Visits;
 At online events and meetings.

We will be consulting over a period of 8 weeks, with the results available in December 2021. 
We want to hear from the public on how we can improve and shape our activities over the next
3 years. As we develop our plans, we will consult with the public again on any specific 
proposals so that we can fully understand the impact they may have.

During our consultation, we aim to consult with a representative sample of the community we 
serve. This means consulting with as many of the population across Gloucestershire as 
possible. Our aim is to receive as many responses as we can to ensure the sample size is 
robust, which means we can be confident in the findings of the consultation.

The Covid-19 pandemic is likely to cotinine to impact on our consultation which means that we 
can’t go out into the community as we normally would. So we’ll be asking for opinions online 
this year and if anyone has any difficulty with internet access they can speak to us or we can 
provide paper copies of our survey for them on request.

Options

5 Option 1:
Seek amendments or adjustments to the developed draft CRMP 2022-25 and associated 
documentation with the opportunity to include further comments and amendments after public 
consultation and before final draft.

Page 11



Advantages:
- Ensures the draft CRMP takes account of all current and emerging risk information.
- Ensures the draft CRMP takes account of all current and evolving governance information.
- Ensures the draft CRMP is considered fit for purpose.
- Enables the Service to move forward with a draft CRMP that accurately reflects intentions 

for the 2022-25 period.

Disadvantages:
- If the CRMP isn’t approved then the CRMP may not be ready for April 2022.

6 Option 2 (Preferred Option):
Accept the developed draft CRMP 2022-25 and associated documentation approving format 
and content as suitable for submission through the governance process and public 
consultation.

Advantages:
- Ensures the draft CRMP takes account of all current and emerging risk information.
- Ensures the draft CRMP takes account of all current and evolving governance information.
- Ensures the draft CRMP is considered fit for purpose.
- Enables the Service to move forward with a draft CRMP that accurately reflects intentions 

for the 2022-25 period.

Disadvantages:
- None foreseeable.

Risks
7 Failure to produce a Community Risk Management Plan will result in the Service and Fire 
Authority not complying with Fire and Rescue National Framework for England (2018). The 
framework places a legal obligation on all Fire Authorities to develop, produce and publish a 
Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) at least once every 3 years.

Failure to act in accordance with the Framework could lead to statutory intervention under 
section 22 of the Fire and Rescue Service Act 2004.

Financial implications
8 All objectives will be managed as projects through the GFRS Portfolio Management Office. 
Progress and will be tracked, monitored and supported through the Portfolio Management 
Board comprising a selection of GCC Directors and GCC and GFRS Heads of Service.

There are minimal financial implications in the build up to the final draft arising from design 
work and the public consultation and its analysis. Thereafter there may be financial 
implications arising from the 8 objectives as they are progressed towards outcomes but these 
are unknown at this time. Such financial implications will be governed by due process.

Page 12



Climate change implications
9 All 8 objectives and there outcomes will be cognisant of the need to satisfy GCC and central 
government carbon neutral policies.

Equality implications
10 An Equalities Impact Assessment (EIA) has been completed for the GFRS CRMP 2022 – 
2025 and supplements this report. Further EIA’s may be required following the progression of 
the 8 objectives as they are progressed to outcomes.

A summary of the key points from the EIA: -

Age - Age is a major factor when considering vulnerability to fire and other sources of risk. 
GFRS has made the elderly and the young very much a focus of our prevention work. We 
have entered into valuable and effective partnerships with organisations such as Age 
Concern, GCC Adult and Social Care Teams and Schools (engaging with children on fire 
prevention) to help us access those we need to protect, in a way that will encourage them to 
change their behaviour.

Disability - Disability is a major factor when considering fire and other sources of risk. GFRS 
has been involved with directed prevention work in the homes of people with disabilities, for 
example, we work with The Deaf Association to fit specialised smoke alarms designed for 
people who have a hearing impairment. We also safeguard the interests of people with 
disabilities away from their homes, our Protection Team ensure that employers and other 
commercial establishments fulfil their responsibilities to disabled employees and visitors. 
Whilst being able-bodied is important in some aspects of delivering the services we provide, 
where that is not the case GFRS takes a positive approach to employing people with 
disabilities.

Sex - Service users can be male or female. Our workforce are also of mixed gender, GFRS 
has one of the highest proportions of female firefighters in any UK Fire and Rescue Service.

Race - When we undertake Prevention and Protection work in the community we are 
conscious of the need to be sensitive to cultural and language differences. The training given 
to staff undertaking home fire safety checks recognises the need to exercise sensitivity and to 
be able to overcome any language barriers. Similarly, race is not a barrier to employment 
within GFRS. We actively encourage and welcome applications from all sectors of the 
community so that our workforce is representative of the communities we serve.

Gender reassignment - Gender re-assignment has no implication on whether a person could 
be a GFRS service user or employee.

Marriage & civil partnership - Marriage or Civil Partnerships have no implication upon 
whether a person could be a GFRS service user or employee.

Pregnancy & maternity - Pregnancy or maternity has no implication for whether a person 
could be a GFRS service user or employee. In an operational situation the normal process of 
prioritisation of casualties may be affected by pregnancy in the interests of protecting the 
mother and her unborn child. GFRS maternity policies correspond with GCC policies and 
current law. GFRS also has clear policy on the removal of an expectant mother from an 
operational role for the duration of her pregnancy in the interests of protecting the unborn 
child.

Page 13



Religion and/or belief ‐ Religion or beliefs carry no implication for whether a person could be 
a GFRS service user or employee. Where possible religious observance is accommodated 
within working arrangements; some of GFRS’ more recently developed sites having dedicated 
prayer facilities. The training given to staff undertaking home fire safety checks and relating to 
diversity in general recognises the need to exercise sensitivity in relation to religion and belief.

Sexual orientation - As part of normal diversity training GFRS staff are made aware of the 
need to be sensitive in relation to sexual orientation. Support groups for people in same sex 
relationships are included in the prevention work undertaken by GFRS and as such, the 
Service maintains a productive relationship with gay, lesbian, bi-sexual and trans-gender 
support groups.

Cabinet Members should read and consider the Equalities Impact Assessment in order to 
satisfy themselves as decision makers that due regard has been given.

Data Protection Impact Assessment (DPIA) implications
11 There are no Data Protection Impact Assessments implications associated with the 
production of the CRMP 2022 – 2025.

Social value implications
12 In order to achieve the NFCC Fire Standard, a standard expected of all Fire and Rescue 
Services in the creation of their CRMP’s, GFRS must:

- Utilise and share accurate data and business intelligence (from both internal and external 
sources) to support key activities such as evidenced-based decision making, horizon 
scanning, cross border risk identification and organisational learning;

- Ensure transparency in the community risk management planning process through either 
implementing and/or supporting ongoing engagement and formal consultation processes, 
ensuring these are accessible and publicly available;

- Ensure that organisational decisions and the measures implemented support equality, 
diversity, inclusivity, are non-discriminatory and are people impact assessed;

- Meet its legislative, framework and governance requirements linked to Community Risk 
Management;

- Be able to evidence its external and internal operating environment and the strategic 
objectives the community risk management plan is seeking to achieve;

- Identify and describe the existing and emerging local, regional and national hazards it 
faces, the hazardous events that could arise and the risk groups (People, Place, 
Environment and Economy) that could be harmed;

- Analyse risk, consider its risk appetite, determine the risk levels and prioritise risk 
accordingly;

- Make decisions about the deployment of resources based on the prioritised risk levels and 
planning assumptions involved. This should be carried out with consideration to internal 
and external resource availability (people, financial and physical) including collaborative, 
cross-border and national resilience assistance. Consideration should also be given to 
other strategic influences such as consultation feedback, stakeholder engagement and 
political objectives;

- Continually evaluate the effectiveness, efficiency and delivery of the community risk 
management plan and the organisational impact of risk management decisions;

- Be able to clearly define who has overall accountability for the community risk 
management plan and responsibility for the various components contained within it; and

- Provide training and/or support (where required) to all who are involved in the 
development, management and implementation of the community risk management plan.

Page 14



As a consequence of the above approach the social value implications are not adversely 
affected, indeed, the sole intention of the CRMP is to ensure they are not and that we target 
our resources towards areas of social deprivation and to have a positive impact on social 
value.

Consultation feedback
13 A pre-draft CRMP consultation was conducted in February 2021 and will be made 
publically available in a report form. Below is a brief summary:

Consultation Response

 264 responses were received.
 57% were local residents.
 25% of respondents were employees of GFRS and 11% were employees of GCC.
 The remaining 18% were made of Councillors, local businesses, community/volunteer 

groups, other blue light agencies and neighbouring fire and rescue services.
 80% of respondents had not used any of the services provided by GFRS in the last 

three years.

Summary:

 63% of respondents were fairly or very satisfied with GFRS.
 41% of respondents had felt that the service provided by GFRS in the last three years 

had stayed about the same. 20% felt that it got better, 26% of respondents did not know 
and 10% felt that it got worse.

 70% of respondents tend to or strongly agree that GFRS provides good value for 
money, with 13% disagreeing and the remaining respondents not knowing.

 The majority (75%) of respondents felt either fairly or very confident that GFRS 
provides an effective service overall.

 When the respondents were asked to prioritise a number of activities that they felt were 
the most important for GFRS, responding to fires scored the highest. Rescuing people 
from road traffic collisions was the next highest score and preventing fires and 
promoting fire safety followed.

Activity Rank order
Responding to fires 1
Rescuing people from road traffic collisions 2
Preventing fires and promoting fire safety 3
Responding to National large scale 
emergencies such as flooding and terrorist 
incidents

4

Collaborating with other Blue light 
organisations, for example the Police and 
Ambulance

5

Ensuring those responsible for public and 
commercial buildings comply with fire 
safety regulations

6

Obtaining information from 
landlords/building owners to improve 
response if a fire or other emergency 
occurs in the building

7

Page 15



 When the respondents were asked to rank non-statutory activities, the highest scoring 
activity was, responding to medical incidents. Responding to storms and other natural 
disasters scored the second highest, with responding to water rescue incidents scoring 
the third highest.
Non-statutory activity Rank order
Responding to medical incidents (either assisting 
the ambulance service or as a first responder or 
to serious medical calls)

1

Responding 
disasters

to storms and other natural 2

Responding to water rescue incidents 3
Promoting road safety 4
Responding to animal rescue 5
Supporting Covid-19 work to reduce the impact 
on the community

6

Promoting water safety 7
Collaborating with other departments of the 
County Council and wider organisations such as 
Gloucestershire Clinical Commissioning Group

8

Supporting youth development work 9

 66% of the respondents stated that it is important that our workforce reflects the diverse 
communities that we serve.

 69% of the respondents felt that GFRS should increase its road safety education and 
prevention activity, even though it is not a statutory duty.

The results of the eight-week draft CRMP that will be carried out in October and November will 
also be made publicly available. Where objective outcomes require consultation this will also 
be made publically available.

Officer recommendations
14 Approval is sought from Cabinet to agree the DRAFT Community Risk Management Plan 
2022-2025 and to undertake a public consultation on it.

Performance Management/Follow-up
15 Once the draft CRMP 2022 – 2025 has been through Cabinet and public consultation the 
final draft will proceed to Cabinet for final sign off and publication in April 2022. Thereafter, the 
Services performance against the 8 objectives will be managed as projects through the GFRS 
Portfolio Management Office. Progress will be tracked, monitored and supported through the 
Portfolio Management Board comprising a selection of County Council Directors and County 
Council and GFRS Heads of Service. The newly formed Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee 
will scrutinise progress bi-monthly and Her Majesty’s Inspectorate of Constabulary’s and Fire 
and Rescue Services (HMICFRS) will scrutinise progress at a minimum of once a year.

Page 16



1 
 

Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) 
 
This document demonstrates how the council is meeting its duties under the Equality 
Act 2010, by giving due regard to the requirement to: eliminate discrimination; advance 
equality of opportunity; and promote good relations.  
 

1. Background 
 

Directorate Community Safety  

Service area Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service 

Title of the activity being 
assessed i.e. the strategy, 

plan, policy or service 

 
Community Risk Management Plan 2022-2025 
 

Brief outline of the proposal(s)  Under the Fire and Rescue National Framework 
for England (May 2018), it is a legal requirement 
that the Fire Authority (GCC) produce a 
Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP). 
 
The CRMP shows how Gloucestershire Fire and 
Rescue Service (GFRS) will manage safety risks 
for the next three years. The development 
process causes GFRS to consider the safety risks 
that all members of our community face and how 
GFRS can best manage those risks. 
 
Activity:  
Development and implementation of a three year 
CRMP 2022 – 2025. 
 
Aims:  
The aims of the CRMP are to deliver our Service 
Aims in the most efficient and effective way.  
 
GFRS Service Aims are: 

 People: This supports a motivated and well 
developed workforce understanding, 
supporting and driving change for the 
Service.   

 Prevention and Protection: This gap 
analysis identifies many areas of 
Prevention and Protection we currently 
undertake and where we may need to 
focus in the future. 

 Response and Resilience: Response will 
be enhanced through greater 

Page 17



2 
 

understanding of governance, improved 
collaboration and shared resources. 

 Performance: Promoting a better 
understanding of our legal responsibilities 
to provide continual improvement, 
collaboration in delivering services while 
demonstrating best value for money. 

 
We would also expect the CRMP to consider the 
following issues: 
 

 To identify existing and potential risks to the 
communities of Gloucestershire. 

 To evaluate the effectiveness of current 
prevention initiatives and emergency 
response arrangements. 

 To identify opportunities for improvement 
and determine our future approach to 
service delivery. 

 To determine future resource requirements 
needed to meet foreseeable risks. 

 
Expected Outcome 
 
The expected outcome is to reduce risk and 
suffering to a degree that we can justifiably claim 
to have ‘delivered’ on our mission statement which 
is: 
 
“Working together we will provide the highest 
standard of community safety and emergency 
response services to the communities of 
Gloucestershire” 
 

Who is affected by the 
proposals? 

Service users Workforce  
 
Other, please specify:  
 

Decision to be taken and 
decision maker  

 

This is a Cabinet Decision seeking to approve the 
Fire Authorities Community Risk Management 
Plan 2022-2025. 

Person(s) responsible for 
completing this assessment  

Area Manager Clive Webber 
(clive.webber@glosifre.gov.uk) 

Date of this assessment June 2021 

 
 

  

Partner Agencies 

Page 18



3 
 

2. Information Gathering 
 
Briefly outline your approach to consultation and engagement, together with details of 
any other information and data sources you have utilised: 
 

Research, Consultation and Engagement 

Service users 

The CRMP 2022 – 2025 will go through a period of consultation 
with the public, partners and other stakeholders using both printed 
and electronic media to enable access to as many respondents as 
possible. 
 
The consultation will focus on whether these groups agree that the 
key objectives put forward are the right things for the Service to 
focus efforts and resources on across the three years. 
 
Following consultation, the Service will perform a conscientious 
review of comments and observations made thereby providing 
opportunity to revise the content of the draft CRMP 2022 - 25 in 
line with public and stakeholder expectation before final approval 
and implementation by GCC Cabinet in April 2022. 

Workforce 

A series of visits and presentations will be made to all staff groups 
in order to provide information and take observations, thoughts, 
comments and ideas which were then used to help develop the 
draft CRMP. 
 
Representative Bodies i.e. Unions will invited to comment on the 
draft CRMP once it has been approved by GCC before being 
released for consultation amongst stakeholders. 

Partners 
Our partners and other stakeholders will be included in the 
consultation process. 

Other 

The surrounding six Fire and Rescue Services that boarder the 
County were consulted with under the terms of Section 13 and 16 
arrangements laid down within the Fire and Rescue Services Act 
2004. 

 
3. Equality Assessment 

 
Briefly explain your assessment of the impact of the proposed activity on the protected 
characteristics below. This section evidences how the council is giving due regard to 
the three aims of the general equality duty, which are to: eliminate discrimination; 
advance equality of opportunity; and promote good relations. 
 

Protected Characteristic Service Users Workforce 

Age Age is a major factor 
when considering 

As per Service Users 

Page 19



4 
 

vulnerability to fire and 
other sources of risk. 
GFRS has made the 
elderly and the young 
very much a focus of our 
prevention work. We 
have entered into 
valuable and effective 
partnerships with 
organisations such as 
Age Concern, GCC Adult 
and Social Care Teams 
and Schools (engaging 
with children on fire 
prevention) to help us 
access those we need to 
protect, in a way that will 
encourage them to 
change their behaviour. 

Disability Disability is a major factor 
when considering fire and 
other sources of risk. 
GFRS has been involved 
with directed prevention 
work in the homes of 
people with disabilities, 
for example, we work with 
The Deaf Association to 
fit specialised smoke 
alarms designed for 
people who have a 
hearing impairment. We 
also safeguard the 
interests of people with 
disabilities away from 
their homes, our 
Protection Team ensure 
that employers and other 
commercial 
establishments fulfil their 
responsibilities to 
disabled employees and 
visitors. Whilst being 
able-bodied is important 
in some aspects of 
delivering the services we 
provide, where that is not 
the case GFRS takes a 
positive approach to 

As per Service Users 

Page 20



5 
 

employing people with 
disabilities. 

Sex Service users can be 
male or female. Our 
workforce are also of 
mixed gender, GFRS has 
one of the highest 
proportions of female 
firefighters in any UK Fire 
and Rescue Service. 

As per Service Users 

Race When we undertake 
Prevention and 
Protection work in the 
community we are 
conscious of the need to 
be sensitive to cultural 
and language 
differences. The training 
given to staff undertaking 
home fire safety checks 
recognises the need to 
exercise sensitivity and to 
be able to overcome any 
language barriers. 
Similarly, race is not a 
barrier to employment 
within GFRS. We actively 
encourage and welcome 
applications from all 
sectors of the community 
so that our workforce is 
representative of the 
communities we serve. 

As per Service Users 

Gender reassignment Gender re-assignment 
has no implication on 
whether a person could 
be a GFRS service user 
or employee.  

As per Service Users 

Marriage & civil partnership Marriage or Civil 
Partnerships have no 
implication upon whether 
a person could be a 
GFRS service user or 
employee. 

As per Service Users 

Pregnancy & maternity Pregnancy or maternity 
has no implication for 

As per Service Users 

Page 21



6 
 

whether a person could 
be a GFRS service user 
or employee. In an 
operational situation the 
normal process of 
prioritisation of casualties 
may be affected by 
pregnancy in the interests 
of protecting the mother 
and her unborn child. 
GFRS maternity policies 
correspond with GCC 
policies and current law. 
GFRS also has clear 
policy on the removal of 
an expectant mother from 
an operational role for the 
duration of her pregnancy 
in the interests of 
protecting the unborn 
child. 

Religion and/or belief Religion or beliefs carry 
no implication for whether 
a person could be a 
GFRS service user or 
employee. Where 
possible religious 
observance is 
accommodated within 
working arrangements; 
some of GFRS’ more 
recently developed sites 
having dedicated prayer 
facilities.  The training 
given to staff undertaking 
home fire safety checks 
and relating to diversity in 
general recognises the 
need to exercise 
sensitivity in relation to 
religion and belief. 

As per Service Users 

Sexual orientation As part of normal diversity 
training GFRS staff are 
made aware of the need 
to be sensitive in relation 
to sexual orientation. 
Support groups for 
people in same sex 

As per Service Users 

Page 22



7 
 

relationships are included 
in the prevention work 
undertaken by GFRS and 
as such, the Service 
maintains a productive 
relationship with gay, 
lesbian, bi-sexual and 
trans-gender support 
groups. 

4. Completed Actions 
 
Set out how the proposed activity has already been amended following the equality 
assessment, to maximise the positive impact or minimise the negative impact: 
 

Change Reason for Change 

N/A N/A 

 
5. Planned Actions 

 
Set out improvements that will be undertaken, following the equality assessment, to 
further maximise the positive impact or minimise the negative impact: 
 

Potential impact 
(positive or 
negative) 

Action By when Owner 

Positive Consultation on draft CRMP with 
the public and other stakeholders. 

01 Oct 21 – 
03 Dec 21 

Area Manager 
Clive Webber 

Positive Continued consultation with our 
workforce in order to maintain 
good industrial relations and 
ensure any aspects that may 
affect those with protected 
characteristics are suitably 
addressed. 

Ongoing Area Manager 
Clive Webber 

 
6. Monitoring and review 

 

The following processes/actions will be put in place to keep this ‘activity’ under 
review: 

As progress is made with the CRMP Action Plan 2022 - 2025 reports will be made 
to the Lead Cabinet Member and Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee as and when 
required. 
 

Page 23



Page 24



9 
 

Appendix 1 – Service User Data 
 
Details of service users affected by the proposed activity. All data is drawn from Inform Gloucestershire - Population Profile 2021 
Report unless otherwise stated. 
 

Protected 
Characteristic 

Service User Data and Information 

  

Age 
percentage/profile 

of service user 
ages 

 

In 2019, the resident population of Gloucestershire was estimated to be 637,070 people of which: 
 

 22.4 % were aged 0-19; 

 56.0% were aged 20-64; 

 21.6% were aged 65 and over. 
 
Persons of all ages may potentially be service users although the Home Office Fire Statistics (April 2019 to March 
2020). For every million people in England, there were 4.3 fire related fatalities in 2019/20. The fatality rate was 
highest among older people: 8.4 million per million for those aged 65 to 79 years old and 16.9 for those aged 80 
years and over. The fatality rates for age bands within 54 years and younger were all below 5 fatalities per million 
population. 
 
As is the case in many parts of the UK, the number of older people in the county has steadily increased over the 
last 10 years. Projections suggest this trend will continue, with the number of people aged 65+ projected to 
increase by approximately 71,000 or 52.5% between 2018 and 2043.  
 
This information helps to inform our prevention work. 

P
age 25



10 
 

Sex 
percentage/profile 
of service users 

who are male and 
who are female 

 

The overall population split by sex in Gloucestershire is slightly skewed towards females, with males making up 
49.1% of the population and females accounting for 50.9%. 
 
Although there are slightly more males than females in the 0-19 year old age band, as age increases, females 
outnumber males by an increasing margin. In Gloucestershire in 2019, 52.8% of people aged 65-84 were female, 
whilst for people aged 85+ the difference is observed at district, regional and national level. As a result of this, 
71% of single pensioner households are shown to be headed by a woman. However, the proportion of men in 
the older population is increasing as the life expectancy of men increases, thus amongst the population aged 85 
and over in Gloucestershire, the proportion of men increased from 31.6% in 2009 to 36.1% in 2019. 
 
Home Office Fire Statistics (April 2019 to March 2020) reports that men have a greater likelihood of dying in a 
fire than women. The overall fatality rate per million population for males in 2019/2020 was 5.5 while the rate for 
females was 3.1 per million. For men aged 65 to 79 the fatality rate was 10.6 per million while the equivalent rate 
for women was 6.4 per million. For those aged 80 and over, the rate for men was 22.6 per million and for women 
was 13.1 per million. 
 
This information informs our targeted prevention work. 

Disability 
percentage/profile 
of service users 

who have a 
disability 

 

According to the 2011 Census 16.7% of Gloucestershire residents reported having a long-term limiting health 
problem or disability; 7.3% reported that their activities were limited ‘a lot’ and 9.5% reported their activities were 
limited ‘a little’. The equivalent national figures for England were 17.6%, 8.3% and 9.3%. At a household level, 
24.2% of households had at least one person with a long-term limiting health problem or disability; this was 
slightly lower than the figure for England of 25.7%. 
 
Dementia is one of the major causes of disability in older people. Estimated projections suggest that in 2021 
there will be approximately 10,076 people aged 65+ living with dementia in Gloucestershire. Incidents of 
dementia increase with age - people aged 65-69 account for 6.1% of dementia sufferers over 65 in 
Gloucestershire; this increases to 21.8% for the 85-89 age group. Given the ageing population the number of 
dementia sufferers is expected to increase in the future. 
 

Estimated projections suggest that in 2021 there will be approximately 12,095 people aged 18+ living with a 

P
age 26



11 
 

learning disability in Gloucestershire equating to 2.3% of the adult population. Of this group, about 2,473 are 

estimated to have moderate or severe learning disabilities, equating to 0.5% of the adult population. With 

regards to children, 5,190 school pupils in Gloucestershire (5.9% of school pupils) were known to have a learning 

disability in 2020. Of these children, 4,442 had a moderate learning disability and 612 had a severe learning 

disability. 

 
Long-term limiting health problems or disabilities, particularly amongst more elderly members of the community, 
are linked to vulnerability to fire from a variety of perspectives ranging from forgetfulness to susceptibility to injury 
and inability to escape unaided.  
 
For these reasons the prevention work undertaken by GFRS targets those with disabilities and poor health. 
 

Race 
percentage/profile 
of service users 

who are from black 
and minority ethnic 

backgrounds 

 

The 2011 Census found that 7.7% of Gloucestershire residents (46,100 people) were born outside the UK 

compared with a national figure of 13.4%; of this group, 40.8% were born in another European country and 22.3% 

were born in the Middle East or Asia. More recent estimates suggest that in 2019/20 9.2% of Gloucestershire 

residents were born in another country. 

 

With regards to ethnic origin, the 2011 Census found that 91.6% of Gloucestershire residents were White British, 

2.1% were Asian/Asian British, 1.5% were from a Mixed/Multiple Ethnic group, 0.9% were Black/Black British, 

0.6% were White Irish, 0.1% were of Gypsy or Irish Traveller origin, 3.1% were in an ‘other White’ category and 

0.2% were in another ethnic group. Some 36% of the people who were not White British were born in the UK. 

 
The 2011 Census found that overall, 4.6% of the population in Gloucestershire was from Black and Minority Ethnic 

(BME) backgrounds; this figure increased to 8.4% when the Irish, Gypsy or Irish Traveller and ‘other White’ 

categories were included. The proportion of people from Black and Minority Ethnic backgrounds was considerably 

lower than the national figure of 14.6%. 

 

According to the 2011 Census, 18,784 people in Gloucestershire (3.3% of the population) did not speak English 

P
age 27



12 
 

as their main language. Amongst this group, Polish was the most common language (5,516 people), followed by 

Gujarati (1,065 people) and then a Chinese language (1,000 people). An EU language other than Polish was the 

main language of 5,993 people. At district level, Gloucester had the highest proportion of people who did not 

speak English as their main language (5.7%) followed by Cheltenham (5.3%). Some 82% of people, whose main 

language was not English, could speak English well or very well. Older people were less likely than younger 

people to be proficient in English; 29% of people aged 50 and over who did not speak English as a main language 

were not proficient in English compared with 17% of people aged under 50 who did not speak English as a main 

language. 

  
Persons from any ethnic origin may be Service users, the information and more detailed information from MAIDeN 
about population location is of value in identifying where we need to ‘fit’ our approach to prevention work to the 
needs of the local population. 

Marriage & civil 
partnership 

percentage/profile 
of service users 

who are married or 
in a civil 

partnership 

 

Evidence suggests being married is associated with better mental health. There is less evidence on the benefits 

of being in a civil partnership; however, it is likely the benefits will also be experienced by people in similarly 

committed relationship such as civil partnerships. 

 

Among residents of Gloucestershire: 

 

 30.5% are single and have never married or registered a same-sex civil partnership 

 50.2% are married; 

 0.3% are in a registered same-sex civil partnership; 

 2.3% are separated but still legally married or still legally in a same sex civil partnership; 

 9.5% are divorced or formerly in a same sex civil partnership which is now legally dissolved; 

 7.2% are widowed or a surviving partner from a same sex civil partnership. 
 
 
Gloucestershire has a lower proportion of people who are single or separated when compared to the national 

P
age 28



13 
 

figure. In contrast the proportion of people who are married, divorced or widowed exceeds the national figures. 

 
Marital status or cohabitation do not have a direct impact on ability to access GFRS services although there is a 
projected increase in single person households (57% increase by 2033). Living alone does make people more 
vulnerable to fire, particularly when combined with low income and the higher age bracket. 

Religion and/or 
belief 

percentage/profile 
of service users 
religious beliefs 

According to the 2011 Census, 63.5% of residents in Gloucestershire were Christian, making it the most common 

religion. This was followed by no religion which accounts for 26.7% of the total population. 

 
Gloucestershire has a higher proportion of people who are Christian, have no religion or have not stated a religion 

than the national figures. In contrast it has a lower proportion of people who follow a religion other than 

Christianity, which reflects the ethnic composition of the county. 

 
Other religions made up the following percentages: Muslim 1.0%, Hindu 0.4%, Buddhist 0.3%, Jewish 0.1%, Sikh 
0.1%, other religion 0.5% and 7.5% religion not stated.  
 
It is not believed that religion and/or religious belief would be a barrier to Service use. 

Gender 
reassignment 

percentage/profile 
of service users 

who have 
indicated they are 

transgender 

There are no official estimates of gender reassignment at either national or local level. In the next Census (2021) 

there will be a new question around gender, asking “is your gender the same as the sex you were registered at 

birth?” It is directed only at people aged 16 and over, and answers will be voluntary. A separate, individual form 

can also be requested and submitted by any household member, should confidentiality be a concern. It is hoped 

that more accurate data around gender will help equality monitoring in the future. 

 
It is not believed that gender reassignment would be a barrier to Service use. 

P
age 29



14 
 

Pregnancy & 
maternity 

percentage/profile 
of service users 
who are female 

and who are 
pregnant or on a 
maternity leave 

There were 6,124 live births in Gloucestershire in 2019. The highest proportion of deliveries were to women 

aged 30 to 34 continuing the trend of later motherhood. Births to mothers in all age bands between the ages of 

25 and 44 account for a slightly higher proportion of total births in Gloucestershire than they do nationally, whilst 

those to mothers aged under 25 account for a lower proportion. At district level: 

 Gloucester has a higher proportion of births to mothers aged under 20 (3.2%) than     Gloucestershire 

and England. 

 Cheltenham, Cotswold and Stroud have a higher proportion of births to mothers aged 35+ than 

Gloucestershire and England. 

 
All pregnant women are potential service users in a similar manner to those who aren’t pregnant. 

Sexual 
orientation 

percentage/profile 
of service users 
who are lesbian, 

gay, bisexual, 
heterosexual 

Estimates on sexual orientation used by the Department of Trade and Industry in 2003, and quoted by 

Stonewall, suggest around 5-7% of the population aged 16 and over are lesbian, gay or bisexual. If this figure 

were applied to Gloucestershire it would mean somewhere between 26,100 and 36,500 people in the county 

are LGB. A more recent estimate from the 2018 ONS Annual Population Survey (APS) suggests that 2.3% of 

the England population aged 16 and over is LGB: if this figure were applied to Gloucestershire it would mean 

that there are approximately 12,000 LGB people in the county. 

 
It is not believed that sexual orientation would be a barrier to Service use. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 30



15 
 

Appendix 2 – GCC Workforce Data 
 
Details of Gloucestershire County Council staff affected by the proposed activity 
 

Protected Characteristic Total number of GCC staff affected: 

  

Age 
 

The CRMP includes all staff irrespective of age. Those employed by the Service are spread 
across all age groups providing a blend of youth and experience. 
 
Due to terms and conditions of service, primarily related to pension schemes, the maximum 
pensionable age for operational staff now ranges between 50 and 60; the numbers able to retire 
before 55 are rapidly diminishing due to the implementation of a new ‘CARE’ scheme. Individuals 
can opt to retire earlier (55) under the ‘CARE’ scheme with a reduced pension. 
 
All other staff fall within a different set of conditions of service applicable to local government 
employees with pensionable age set by HM Government; this now ranges between 65 and 67 
although individuals can opt to retire earlier and take a reduced pension. The Service currently 
employs individuals that fall within this group working a mix of full and part time contracts. 
 
Fire Control operators have the same general terms and conditions as operational staff but a 
local government employee pension scheme. Again, pensionable ages ranges between 65 and 
67 although individuals can opt to retire earlier and take a reduced pension. 
 

 
Disability 

 

Staff notifying as having a disability equate to less than 5% of the workforce. 

Sex 
 

The notified gender balance across all staff groups is: 

Female staff 19.87%. 

Male staff 80.13%. 

P
age 31



16 
 

 

Race 
 

The diversity across all staff groups is recorded as being: 

Black and other minority ethnicity groups - less than 5%. 

White British 77.87%. 

Remainder unstated. 
 

Gender reassignment Staffing returns provide a nil return regarding this protected characteristic. 

Marriage & civil partnership Staff notified as being ‘single’ (to include never married, divorced and widowed) equates to less 

than 5%. 

Staff notified as having a partner (both married and civil partnerships) equates to 13.19%. 

The remainder are unstated. 

Pregnancy & maternity Individuals notified for this characteristic equates to less than 5. 

Religion and/or belief Accurate information for this group is not available at this time. 

We will continue to work with GCC HR to establish figures and include as and when available. 

Sexual orientation 
 

The notified balance across all staff groups is: 

Lesbian, Bisexual, Gay or Transgender less than 5%. 

Heterosexual 34.68%. 

Remainder unstated. 
 

 
 
 

P
age 32



 
 

Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service 

Community Risk Management Plan 2022 - 2025 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

P
age 33

http://www.glosfire.gov.uk/


  Contents  

2 

 

 

 

Foreword………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 3 

About our Service Area……………………………………………………….…………………………. 4 

Current Response Standards…………………………………………………………………………… 5 

What is a Community Risk Management Plan………………………………………………………… 6 

How do we Identify Risk…………………..……………………………………………………………... 7 

Our Community…………………………..……………………………………………………………..... 8 

Mission, Values and Code of Ethics..………………………………………………………………….. 9 

Strategic Objectives....................................................................................................................... 10 

Prevention ……………...………………………………………………………………………………… 11 

Protection …………...……………………………………………………………………………………. 12 

Response Standards.……………………………………………………………………………………. 13 

Response Arrangements………………………………………………………………………………… 14 

Digital, Data and Technology….……….......................................................................................... 15 

People and Social Responsibility……………………………………………………………………….. 16 

Asset Management……………………………………………………………………………………….. 17 

Collaboration………………………….…………………………………………………………………... 18 

Timelines…………………............................................................................................................... 19 

Consultation……………….............................................................................................................. 20 

P
age 34



  Foreword  

3 

 

 

 

Welcome to Gloucestershire County Council’s Fire and Rescue Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) 
covering the 2022 - 25 period. 

 

As the Fire and Rescue Authority, and governing body for the county, Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) has 
a legal duty to ensure that we provide a highly effective and efficient Fire and Rescue Service that is also value 
for money. The CRMP is the vision of how we plan to mitigate the risks to our communities over the coming years. 

 

The Service continues to face wide-ranging challenges from a continually evolving risk picture, new legislation and 
national drivers that require it to ‘reform’. This plan will demonstrate to the people of Gloucestershire the dedication 
and commitment made to ensuring their ongoing safety and provides assurance that ‘come what may’ 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS) is prepared for every eventuality and able to react accordingly. 
 
“Working together we will provide the highest standard of community safety and emergency response 
services to the communities of Gloucestershire” 

 

GCC made a declaration to reach net zero emissions by 2030. GFRS has a part to play in achieving that goal and 
has already taken steps to support this by moving away from diesel powered response vehicles where it can. 
Meanwhile the effects of climate change are all around us and this is reflected in our operational response e.g. 
flooding incidents. This is a frequent and expected event in parts of Gloucestershire but occasionally we see flooding 
in areas previously unaffected and the expectation for us to take action to protect peoples property and possessions 
is naturally high. We have equipment available at our disposal, the necessary training and national memorandum 
of understanding that ensures we can draw on resources far and wide should we need them.  
 
Overall we continue to seek ethical and sustainable procurement for our consumable items, our PPE and equipment 
and include the learning from many months of Covid - 19. Our agile working programme has been accelerated by 
the pandemic and evolved to reduce unnecessary journeys for meetings and other events by interacting virtually 
thereby reducing our carbon footprint. 

 

We remain confident that, with the unstinting support of the GCC, GFRS will deliver a high class prevention, 
protection and response service to the communities of Gloucestershire for the foreseeable future living up to the 
Service’s mission statement: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Dave Norman 
Lead Cabinet Member 
Gloucestershire County Council 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Mark Preece 
Interim Chief Fire Officer 
Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue 
Service 

P
age 35



  About our Service Area  

4 

 

 

 

 
 

Gloucestershire is a diverse county covering 1,024 square miles and hosting a population of approximately 
640,000. The county is divided into six districts, City of Gloucester, Cheltenham, Forest of Dean, 
Tewkesbury, Cotswold and Stroud. 

 
Over half of Gloucestershire’ County has been designated as an Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty 
(AONB), including parts of the Cotswold's, the Wye Valley and the Forest of Dean. The main urban centres 
are Gloucester and Cheltenham where approximately half of the county’s population live. 

 

GFRS has 32 fire engines with a further 15 specialist vehicles that ensure we provide a high standard 
emergency response to all incidents in all 
areas. These vehicles are crewed by  on-
call and whole-time firefighters and both 
are supported by a core of flexible duty 
Officers and non operational staff at its 
Quedgeley Headquarters or, due to the 
pandemic, from other premises and home 
addresses. 

 

As a Service, we border six other Fire 
and Rescue Services (South Wales, 
Herefordshire and 

 
 
 
 

Worcestershire, Warwickshire, 
Oxford shire, Dorset & Wiltshire and 
Avon), providing mutual cross-border 
support to one another if and when 
required. 

 
 

 

 
 
 

Service Area

Population

640,000

People

4%

local 5yr 

change

Buildings

Over 22,000

Business 

Premises

Over 277,000

Households

Workforce

49%

Wholetime 

Firefighters

51%

On-call 

Firefighters

20 

Fire Control 

Staff

54

Support Staff

Incidents

Assets

21 

Stations

32

Fire Engines

1,024

Sqare miles

5,090

P
age 36



  Current Response Standards  

5 

 

 

 
 

  
 

Current Response Standards 
 

Dwelling fires - We will attend dwelling fires based on an average 
response time of 9 minutes or under. 
 
Commercial fires - We will attend commercial fires based on an 
average response time of 10 minutes or under. 
 
Primary fires - We will attend primary fires based on an average 
response  time of 10 minutes or under. 

Proposal for the future 
 

We always aim to get to emergencies as fast as we can, every 
time. However, we have to be sophisticated in how we allocate our 
resources based on the level of risk and the severity of an incident. 
We measure our response standards to ensure that our resources 
are in the most appropriate location and that the staffing models 
enable us to achieve the best response for the communities that 
we serve. As part of Objective 4, the service will look to review its 
current response standards. 

How do we measure the time that it takes us to respond to an incident? 
 

A response time is measured from the time the call is received by Fire Control to the time that a fire engine arrives at the incident. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The response time is made up of three elements:- 

P
age 37



  What is a Community Risk Management Plan?  

6 

 

 

 

The Fire Authority has a statutory responsibility, under the Fire and Rescue 
Services Act 2004, to produce a CRMP. The plan must cover at least a 
three year period, be reviewed regularly and outline how GFRS will tackle 
and mitigate the risks our communities face. The CRMP is informed by our 
Community Risk Profile (CRP), a document which  assesses in detail the 
risks in our local areas, how likely they are to occur, how extensive the 
impact might be and also takes into account national risks. 

 

As an over-arching plan the CRMP covers all parts of our Service, 
referencing key documents such as our Service Strategies, Annual Service 
Plan and our Team Plans. This helps everyone in our organisation to 
understand risks and how we plan to reduce the impact and respond 
effectively. 

 

The requirements of a CRMP are set out in the ‘Fire and Rescue National 
Framework for England 2018’. This states that each Fire Authority must 
ensure the following five priorities are met: - 

 

1. To be accountable to the communities for the service they provide; 
 

2. To identify and assess the full range of foreseeable fire and rescue 
related risks their areas face; 

 

3. To make appropriate provision for fire prevention and protection 
activities and response to fire and rescue related incidents; 

 
4. To develop and maintain a workforce that is professional, resilient, 
skilled, flexible and delivers; 

 
5. To collaborate with emergency services and other local and national 
partners to increase the efficiency and effectiveness of the service they 
provide. 

 
You will find details of how we address all of the above points throughout 
this plan. 

The National Framework also states what CRMP’s must contain and this 
includes an outline of how we allocate our resources to mitigate risks, and 
how we manage and enforce the Regulatory Reform (Fire Safety) Order 
(RRO) 2005 in relation to business fire safety. 

 

The CRMP will also show you how we have consulted with you, our 
communities, on the development of this plan as well as how we sought the 
options of our staff, representative bodies and partner organisations. 

 
This plan covers the period April 2022 to March 2025 and is reviewed on 
an annual basis to ensure our plans are always up to date and reflect 
changes in local risks, national policies or finances. 

 
At the end of every year we are required to publish a Statement of 
Assurance which outlines how we have performed against our plan and the 
targets set out in it. The transparency this provides makes us fully 
accountable to the communities of Gloucestershire for the service we 
provide to them. 

P
age 38

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705060/National_Framework_-_final_for_web.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705060/National_Framework_-_final_for_web.pdf


  How do we Identify Risk?  

7 

 

 

 

Community Risk Profiles 
 

 

GFRS has conducted a thorough risk 
analysis of previous incidents, fire safety 
audits and safe and well visits and future 
risks that could lead to emergency incidents 
in the future. Our risk information comes from 
a number of sources and helps us to develop 
our Community Risk Profiles (Link to 
CRPs). 

 

The CRP’s inform our decision making 
regarding the most suitable prevention, 
protection and emergency response 
arrangements to manage risk to an 
acceptable level. 

 

The risks we consider include: - 
 

 Fatalities, reflecting the number of 
people killed at an incident. 

 Casualties, covering those requiring 
medical intervention resulting from an 
incident and mental health casualties. 

 Evacuation and shelter from hazardous 
events 

 Behaviour, public perception and  
anxiety. 

 Economy, to include property damage, 
heritage loss and business disruption. 

 Disruption to essential services including 
transport, utilities, finance, 
communications and other Emergency 
Services. 

 Environmental risks including all types of 
pollution to the environment. 

P
age 39



  Our Community  

8 

 

 

 

Although Gloucestershire has an affluent and successful economy, which is generally true, it is not evenly shared. There is evidence to show a link between 
social deprivation and the occurrence of fire, and as such our prevention and protection work, as well as our emergency response has to be tailored to the 
differing needs of each community that we serve. 

 

To ensure that we meet the needs of Gloucestershire and our local communities, it is essential that we make sure that we have the right people, with the 
right equipment, in the right place and at the right time. To enable this, we need to understand the diverse risks and impacts within our area. 

 

P
age 40



  Mission, Values and Code of Ethics  

9 

 

 

 
 

  
 

 
Mission Statement: 
 

 

 
Values: 
 

Our commitment to you is that we will always aim to be the best FRS 
we can be. In order to achieve this, there are certain behaviours that 
we expect from our staff. How well our staff are demonstrating these 
as part of their day to day job is assessed within our bespoke 
appraisal system. We aim to live these values every day: - 

 

 
Code of Ethics: 

 

The National Fire Chiefs Council, with the Local Government Association, have produced a Code of Ethics 
for Fire and Rescue Services, to be adopted by every service in England. The Code of Ethics reflects best 
practice principles and has been designed to underpin the way we serve our communities, carry out our 
role and work together. 

P
age 41



  Strategic Objectives  

10 

 

 

 

Our strategic objectives have been drawn from several sources over 
recent years. Our Cultural Review was conducted evidencing need for 
cultural change within our Service.. Whilst much work has been done 
we know we have much more to do. 

 

GCC internal audit were welcomed into the Service to inspect our 
policies, procedures and processes. 18 reports with 118 
recommendations were addressed through the establishment of an 
Improvement Board over the successive 2 years and we need to 
continue to reflect on and review our practices. 

 

Our first formal inspection by Her Majesty's Inspectorate for 
Constabulary's Fire and Rescue Service (HMICFRS) highlighted the 
need for improvements across our Service. 

 

All of the above has assisted to make the Service more self-aware. In 
response we have established our Portfolio Management Office 
(PMO). This is designed to manage all projects and tasks, including 
those identified by our Cultural Review and our HMICFRS findings. 
Building on the success of our Improvement Board,   we have 
established a Portfolio Management Board who scrutinise progress 
across all areas and provide, advice, support and resources where 
required to ensure we are progressing on our continuous improvement 
journey. In addition, we have learnt many new ways of working during 
Covid - 19 that are an improvement on our usual practices and these 
will become embedded into future ways of workings. 

 

All of the above, coupled with our community risk profiling and our 
professional judgement, have built the foundations for the next 3 years: 
- 

 

Objective 1 - Prevention 
Deliver intelligence informed person-centred and impactful prevention 
activities that effectively and efficiently improve the safety, health and 
wellbeing of the diverse people who live, work in or visit 
Gloucestershire. 

Objective 2 - Protection 
Deliver intelligence informed and impactful protection activities, to include 
inspections, audits, education and enforcement, which continue to reduce the 
likelihood and impact of fire in commercial buildings across Gloucestershire 
and reduce the risk to both the public and firefighters. 

 

Objective 3 - Response Standards 
Implement National Operational Guidance and approved National Fire 
Standards to assure and support operational competence, learning and 
preparedness. 

 

Objective 4 - Response Arrangements 
Review our existing arrangements to ensure that we have the required 
number of resources, with the right people and equipment, at the right time, 
in the right location. 

 

Objective 5 - Digital, Data and Technology 
Increase the use of data and business intelligence tools to ensure that we 
understand our risks and maximise the use of technology to respond 
appropriately to those risks. 

 

Objective 6 - People and Social Responsibility 
Further improve our inclusive culture to ensure that we attract, retain, support 
and develop a diverse workforce, which is truly representative of our 
communities. 

 

Objective 7 - Asset Management 
Continue to provide the best facilities, vehicles, equipment and personal 
protective equipment (PPE) we can afford, enabling us to deliver a 
professional service to our communities. 

 

Objective 8 - Collaboration 
Collaboration is important in every organisation. We will collaborate by 
communicating with partners and building on ideas to innovate or do 
something differently in the   public’s interest. 

 

Whilst we know ‘what’ we need to do, we detail the ‘why’ and the ‘how’ over 
the successive pages. Finally, we describe the timelines to ensure we provide 
assurance that our CRMP is providing the desired outcomes. 

P
age 42



  Objective 1 - Prevention  

11 

 

 

 
 
 

Deliver intelligence informed person-centred and impactful prevention 
activities that effectively and efficiently improve the safety, health and 
wellbeing of the diverse people who live, work in or visit 
Gloucestershire. 

 
Effective person-centred prevention activities will ensure we maximise our ability to reduce the potential for harm arising from fire and 
other emergencies such as flooding, road traffic collisions, arson and medical crises. To support and enable this we need to further 
develop our understanding of the different ways in which people encounter risk by collecting and analysing data more effectively to ensure 
we maximise our prevention activities. 

 
 
 

 
 Work collaboratively with partners to capture, share and analyse incident data to provide an intelligence led, risk based 
approach to target the vulnerable and most at risk from fire and other emergencies; 

 Work collaboratively to maximise capacity and reach, through the use of specialists, firefighters and partners to make every 
contact count; 

 Collaborate with other Fire & Rescue Services, the voluntary sector, local stakeholders and, where possible, use academic 
research to ensure we develop and deliver effective prevention activities. 

 Clearly evidence through evaluation, the impact our ongoing activities have on the safety, health and wellbeing of the diverse 
people who live, work in or visit Gloucestershire. 

 Actively support the Gloucestershire Road Safety Forum; 

 Continue to develop the outstanding work that takes place in SkillZONE and in the community to engage with children and their 
families as early as possible to improve their awareness of the risks from fire and other emergencies; 

 Continue to actively support, and lead where possible, the work of the adult and child safeguarding partnerships to create a 
fairer and more inclusive society in which people can live healthier and less-isolated lives. 

P
age 43



  Objective 2 - Protection  

12 

 

 

 

Deliver intelligence informed and impactful protection activities, to 
include inspections, audits, education and enforcement, which 
continue to reduce the likelihood and impact of fire in commercial 
buildings across Gloucestershire and reduce the risk to both the 
public and firefighters. 

 
 

Targeting our resources through an effective intelligence led, Risk Based Inspection Programme will make the built environment 

across Gloucestershire safer through improving fire safety legislation compliance, in accordance with the Regulatory Reform (Fire 

Safety) Order 2005, across the business sector in Gloucestershire. This will improve the safety, health and wellbeing of our 

communities; reduce the economic and psychological loss to business owners and reduce a preventable response undertaken by 

firefighters. 

 

 

 Work collaboratively with partners to capture, share and analyse incident data to provide a strategic information advantage that 
informs our Risk Based Inspection Programme 

 Work with other regulators and stakeholders to actively engage and educate local businesses, supported by fair and 
proportionate enforcement to reduce risk; 

 Maximise capacity and enhance firefighter safety by training operational crews to support fire safety and develop a robust 
Business Safe and Well inspection programme. 

 Continue to embed the recommendations from the ongoing Grenfell enquiry in partnership with our Learning and 
Development  and control departments to ensure compliance across Gloucestershire. 

 Ensure we maintain a highly skilled and sustainable specialist fire safety team that hold the recognised qualifications for 
regulators as set out in the in the Competence framework for Fire Regulators (2020); 

 Ensure continuous improvement through effective evaluation of protection activities utilising audit findings, to inform the annual 
Risk Based Inspection Programme. 

 Work with the NFCC to actively support and respond to learning from the Grenfell Public Inquiry and the Independent Review of 
Building Regulations. 

P
age 44



  Objective 3 - Response Standards  

13 

 

 

 
 

 

Implement National Operational Guidance and approved 

       National Fire Standards to assure and support operational 

competence, learning and preparedness. 
 
 

Fire and Rescue incidents are wide ranging and varied. Historically we have created standard operating procedures to deal with 

them, created from written risk assessments, that inform our training and provide ongoing guidance for our incident commanders. 

Unfortunately, every Fire and Rescue Service in the UK has done the same and there can be some slight differences in approach 

and terminology. As a consequence National Operational Guidance has been written that provides Fire and Rescue Services 

with a clear framework for attending and training for all operational activities. This ensures a more joined up approach when working 

at over boarder incidents or at national large scale multi-agency incidents such as flooding events, acts of terrorism and incidents 

that threaten our environment. In addition a raft of National Fire Standards are being written to ensure there is a nationally 

recognised training standard in support of this National Operational Guidance. Finally, where we attend incidents we will debrief 

them and share our learning nationally. Aligning our guidance and training will not only help us to prepare and plan for emergencies, 

but to contribute to improving firefighter safety and the safety of the much wider community. 

 
 

 
 Renew and update our operational procedures and guidance to align with National Operational Guidance. 

 Refresh and renew the skills of our operational and Fire Control staff through practical and theoretical learning. 

 Plan for major incidents through exercising and testing. 

 Work with partners to enhance our response to large scale and multi-agency incidents 

 Share learning with our neighbouring Fire and Rescue Services and across the wider sector to ensure that National 

Operational Guidance remains current. 

 We will regularly review and update our training to ensure we are adhering to best practice. 

P
age 45



  Objective 4 - Response Arrangements  

14 

 

 

 
 
 

Review our existing arrangements to ensure that we have the 

required number of resources, with the right people and 

equipment, at the right time, in the right location. 
 
 
 

There is no ‘one size fits all’ approach to managing a Fire and Rescue Services resources, capacity and capability. In addition, 

Gloucestershire and its communities have different needs and risks to other areas within the country. The priority for the Service 

will always be to safeguard our communities, by preventing harm from occurring in the first place, through our Prevention and 

Protection activities. However, we recognise that emergency incidents will still occur. It is for that reason we need to review our 

fire cover arrangements in response to a changing workforce; risks to the public, firefighters and the environment; changing 

technology; demographics, the lasting effects of Covid - 19 and most of all, to meet the expectations of the communities we 

serve. 
 

In an ever changing environment, we must remain flexible in the delivery of our service. Informed by evidence based risk profile, 

further extensive predictive analysis and insights will help to ensure that we have the right skills, equipment, capacity and 

capability at the right time, in the right location. By capacity we mean the ability of staff present at any one time to provide an 

effective and efficient Prevention, Protection and Response service and by capability we mean the skills, experience, knowledge 

and training of those staff present to provide community focused outcomes. 

 
 Perform scenario modelling of our existing fire cover, specialist appliances and emergency medical response 

arrangements.

 Modernise the staffing model for on-call firefighters and attract a more diverse range of applicants by performing an

extensive review of the current system 

 Undertake a systematic review of our mobilisation and attendance times, exploring innovative solutions to improve on 

them.

 Explore the use and location of technology to support the command of operational incidents.

 Review our existing response standards.

P
age 46



  Objective 5 - Digital, Data and Technology  

15 

 

 

 

Increase the use of data and business intelligence tools to 

ensure that we understand our risks and maximise the use of 

technology to respond appropriately to those risks. 

In a digital world it is import that the Service keeps up to date with the relevant advances in data analytics and technology. The 
service has a long history of investing in its technology, this includes a state of the art Control Room, Mobile Data Terminals on 
fire engines, IPads for safe and well visits and the ability to work with agility using laptops and mobile phones. 

 
The Service is currently Cyber Essentials Plus accredited and has been since June 2017. With the implementation of a more 
agile workforce, driven by the Covid - 19 pandemic, and the arrival of the Emergency Services Network (ESN) for improved joint 
operation working, it is important that the Service continues to invest in technology. 

 
 
 

 Introduce a new Management Information System that links the areas of Protection, Firefighter Safety and Prevention activity 
and keeps all our risk information together.

 Develop and embed systems to effectively evaluate our activity to keep our communities safe.
 With the support from the National Fire Chiefs Council, we aim to extend the range of data we use, specifically from the 

Health Service and continue to improve and develop our approach to analysing and understanding community risk thereby 
delivering more effective outcomes for vulnerable people across our communities.

 Implement new emergency mobilising technology into our operational service as well as review current systems to deliver 
improved response times.

 Engage with the Home Office led Emergency Services Mobile Communication Programme (ESMCP) in order to implement 
the Emergency Services Network (ESN) within Gloucestershire.

 Evaluate our IT systems to ensure we are making best use of technology as a key enabler for our service.
 Keep our systems updated to the relevant security requirements to keep our data and systems secure.
 Remain accredited to the relevant codes of connection and security e.g. cyber essentials plus.
 Collect and analyse new data to deepen our understanding of where risk lies in Gloucestershire.
 Design and embed a new risk matrix that prioritises our work so that we are able to deliver tailor-made safe and well visits 

to support individual and household needs.

P
age 47



  Objective 6 - People and Social Responsibility  

16 

 

 

 

Further improve our inclusive culture to ensure that we 

attract, retain, support and develop a diverse workforce, 

which is truly representative of our communities. 
Our team is stronger, safer and more effective when each and everyone of us is given the opportunity to contribute our 
best; irrespective of race, sex, gender reassignment, age, sexual orientation , religion and/or belief, marriage & civil 
partnerships, pregnancy & maternity or disability. 

 
We recognise that diversity is what makes our organisation successful and drives a healthy culture, so we are committed 
to attracting new staff by being an employer of choice. We know that by promoting the right values, we will positively impact 
the working life of every member of staff and those living within the communities we serve. 

 
We have both a moral and legal duty to move forward as a modern Fire and Rescue Service by driving equality, diversity 
and inclusivity. We know the views and feelings of our staff regarding inclusion and we are committed to improving our 
culture. We want staff to feel confident that any issues they may have will be listened to and addressed in a positive way. 

 
We are focused and determined to provide equality of opportunity for all staff and demonstrate due regard for the value of 
difference, operating in an environment that encourages innovation and does not tolerate inappropriate behaviour. 

 
 

 Delivering the objectives contained on the cultural section of our Service Improvement plan. 
 Increasing our resources and capacity in the right areas to deliver equality, diversity and inclusion work across the 

organisation. 
 Developing and maintaining our training for every member of staff regarding cultural intelligence. 
 Working in collaboration with other agencies and partners to access the best support and scrutiny over our future 

plans. 
 Continuing to ensure that our values and code of ethics drive everything we do. 
 Continuing to enhance and develop our innovative recruitment and progression practices to drive inclusivity. 
 Reviewing and improving our work on positive action. 
 Developing our Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) Network to strengthen their influence on the Service. 
 Increasing engagement through visible leadership and the use of our EDI Network to ensure staff have a voice in 

shaping the future of our Service. 

P
age 48



  Objective 7 - Asset Management  

17 

 

 

 

Continue to provide the best facilities, vehicles, equipment and 

personal protective equipment (PPE) we can afford, enabling us 

to deliver a professional service to our communities. 

 
We are aware of the changing risks within our communities and recognise there is a need to procure a range of professional 
services to  maintain a wide range of assets for our staff to deliver a professional service to our communities. When considering 
the renewal or enhancement of our assets, we need to consider the extent to which expenditure increases our effectiveness and 
efficiency to prevent, protect and respond to the significant range of emergency incidents we are called to attend. Overall, we 
continue to seek ethical and sustainable procurement for our consumable items, our PPE and equipment and include the learning 
from many months of Covid - 19. 

 
 

 
 Undertake a review of our current fleet that includes vehicles and specialist assets e.g. boats to ensure we have the right 

resources to meet the current and future needs of the Service;

 Undertake a review of equipment and PPE provided to our specialist rescue teams, for example water rescue and working at
height, to ensure they can respond safely, effectively and efficiently. 

 Secure sustainable capital and revenue budgets aligned to our strategic objectives;

 Adopt the whole life cycle approach to asset management, engaging with end users and actively pursuing collaboration 
opportunities with partners;

 Implement effective and sustainable asset management plans and systems providing assurance that our fleet, equipment, 
facilities and training resources support current and future needs;

 Ensure we have compliant and collaborative procurement processes so we purchase the right products and services at the
best price. 

P
age 49



  Objective 8 - Collaboration  

18 

 

 

 

Collaboration is important in every organisation. We will 

collaborate by communicating with partners and building on 

ideas to innovate or do something differently in the  public’s 

interest. 
 
 

GFRS has collaboration arrangements for its prevention, protection and response activities. For example, we share our buildings 
with Gloucestershire Constabulary, the South West Ambulance Service and the Severn Area Rescue Association. Our protection 
teams inspect premises with the Building Control and Housing Teams where applicable and we refer some of our Safe and Well 
clients to Social Services and other partners who can address and support with other issues. Where the law permits, collaborative 
work can include the sharing of information in support of Children and Adult Services in the best interest of those affected. When 
collaboration works well it enables us to achieve more as a collective team and the benefits are tangible, but over time we may 
have arrangements that need reviewing to ensure they best serve the public interest. The Policing and Crime Act 2017 requires 
the Police, Fire and Rescue and Ambulance Services to keep collaboration opportunities    under review and, where it is in the 
mutual interest of efficiency or effectiveness, to put new arrangements into practice. 

 
 
 

 Collaboration with other blue light services, including a rationalisation and sharing of estates as well as looking for joined up 
working practices.

 Continuing to evaluate and improve our campaigns by learning from others.
 Exploring opportunities for collaborative working and partnership development to maximise safety messages and 

campaigns building on what we have learnt throughout the pandemic.
 Building a Collaboration Framework so that we can demonstrate where we are providing added value and to assist us with

ongoing reviews. 
 Review our collaboration and partnership agreements to ensure they continue to deliver the best value for our 

communities.

P
age 50



  Timelines  

19 

 

 

 

   

 

“Working together we will provide the highest standard of community safety and emergency response services to the communities of 
Gloucestershire”

Year 1 2022-23 

 
Cultural Change Plan Implementation 

 
Implement National Operational 

Guidance Emergency Service Network 

Programme PPE Review 

Light Fleet Review 

Collaboration Framework 

Security Governance 

Review 

Building Fire Safety Risk Review 
 

Firefighter Apprenticeships 

 
Operational Assurance 

Improvements Agile Working 

Consolidation 

Aerial Appliance Review 

Year 2 2023-24 

 
Culture Change Plan Implementation 

 
Implement National Operational 

Guidance Emergency Service 

Network Programme Specialist PPE 

Review 

Light Fleet 

Review 

Collaboration 

Review 

Fire Ground Radio 

Upgrade Front Line 

Appliance Review 

Power BI Data 

Improvements 

Year 3 2024-25 

 
Culture Change Plan Implementation 

 
Implement National Operational 

Guidance Emergency Service 

Network Transition Provision of 

Specialist PPE 

Incident Command Unit Review 

Severn Park Training Centre 

Review 

P
age 51



  Consultation  

20 

 

 

How we intend to consult? 

This years consultation runs from (date) to (date). We will be carrying out a brief survey, in a Covid - 19 safe manner, to capture your views which are 
available to complete: - 

 

 On our website www.glosfire.gov.uk; 
 

 On our twitter feed www.twitter.com/glosfire; 
 

 On our Facebook page 
 

 During our Safe and Well Visits; 
 

 At online events and meetings. 
 

If you have any comments or would like to contact us about any issue, please visit our website at www.glosfire.gov.uk where you will find full contact 
details along with links to further information about our services and activities. 

 

If you have any general enquiries, please call 01452 888777 or email us at crmp@glosfire.gov.uk. 
 

This year we will be consulting over a period of 8 weeks, with the next set of results available in (date). To read all our plans and to complete our survey 
please visit (website address). 

 
We are constantly striving to make our prevention, protection and response services to you better and we are accountable to you in everything we do. We 
want to hear from you about how we can improve and shape our activities over the next 3 years. As we develop our plans, we will consult with you on any 
specific proposals so that we can fully understand the impact they may have. 

 

Do you agree with the consultation approach? 

During our annual consultation we aim to consult with a representative sample of the community we serve This means consulting with as many of the 
population across Gloucestershire as possible. Our aim is to receive as many responses as we can to ensure the sample size is robust, which means we 
can be confident in the findings of the consultation. 

 
The Covid-19 pandemic is likely to continue to impact on our consultation which means that we can’t come out into the community as we normally would. 
So we’ll be asking for your opinions online this year and if you have any difficulty with internet access you can speak to us or we can provide paper copies 
of our survey for you on request. 

P
age 52

http://www.glosfire.gov.uk/
https://twitter.com/glosfire?form=MY01SV&OCID=MY01SV&form=MY01SV&OCID=MY01SV
http://www.glosfire.gov.uk/


CFO Mark Preece
Fire Scrutiny Committee Meeting 

HMICFRS Update 
10th September 2021

P
age 53

A
genda Item

 5



HMICFRS Inspection  Focus

In carrying out inspections across all of the 45 fire and rescue services in England, HMICFRS answer 

three main questions:-

1. How effective is the FRS at keeping people safe and secure from fire and other risks?

2. How efficient is the FRS at keeping people safe and secure from fire and other risks?

3. How well does the FRS look after its people?

P
age 54



HMICFRS Inspection  Criteria 

HMICFRS have four judgement criteria which have the following meaning:-

• Good is the expected graded judgement for all FRS. It is based on policy, practice or performance 

that meet pre-defined grading criteria, which are informed by relevant national operational guidance or 

standards.

• If the service exceeds what is expected for good, it will be judged as outstanding.

• If they find short-comings in the service, it will be judged as requiring improvement.

• If they find serious critical failings of policy, practice or performance of the fire and rescue service, they 

will judge it as inadequate.

P
age 55



Cause for Concerns Update

Following our full HMICFRS inspection in 2019 GFRS received two ‘Causes for Concern’ or areas where 

our performance was deemed inadequate.

1. GFRS values are tarnished and are not credible with staff. The service needs to introduce its new 

values and service structure to allow staff and managers to understand the priorities for the future.

2. GFRS does not have a clear protection strategy that describes how it will manage its statutory 

responsibilities using its risk-based inspection programme (RBIP) to identify the highest-risk premises. 

The service has difficulty in maintaining and interpreting its data and can’t carry out the number of 

audits of high-risk premises that it commits to as part of its RBIP.

P
age 56



Improving Our Culture

• GFRS has developed a Cultural Action Plan which is monitored through the Programme Management 

Office;

• Cultural Action Plan current risk status is ‘at risk’ pending the Comms Plan being developed by GCC;

• We have launched new Service Core Values through 44 staff engagement sessions;

• Service Core Values are underpinned by National Fire Chiefs Council ‘Code of Ethics’;

• New Promotion and Progression Policy developed in consultation with staff;

• With assistance from GCC HR we have introduced a Workforce Planning Meeting;

P
age 57



Improving Our Culture Cont’d 

• Raised our Continual Professional Development payment from 2nd lowest to mid table;

• Rolled out Unconscious Bias Training to all managers and staff;

• Initial EDI Training delivered to operational crews with further training being procured through GCC;

• Senior Leadership Team have commissioned Cultural Intelligence Training to support the Service’s 

approach to ED&I.;

• Training will be tailored to different levels of manager within the Service and lead to ‘Cultural Intelligence 

Champions’;

• Staff Appraisal Process revised to include ED&I objectives, wellbeing and new Core Values;

P
age 58



Improving Our Culture Cont’d 

• Middle and Senior Managers have received extensive Employment Law, Discipline and Grievance 

training by an external HR & Employment Law provider;

• We have launched the ‘Speak up if its not right’ campaign;

• Revised our Exit Interview process to capture and understand the views of our workforce;

• Established an ED&I network to promote and drive forward the ED&I agenda within the Service;

• Recruited a dedicated new post into the Service Structure to focus on our ED&I network and oversee 

the work of the Cultural Action Plan;

• Introduced new national Firefighter Apprenticeship Scheme and recruited a pool of 40 whole time 

firefighters..

P
age 59



Improving Business Fire Safety

1. Risk Based Inspection Programme (RBIP)

a) Full review of the definition of Higher Risk has been undertaken leading to a new RBIP;

b) On track to visit and audit all Higher Risk premises by October 2021;

c) This will enable BFS Team to develop a re-inspection schedule based upon the scores awarded 

from the initial inspection;

d) Re-inspection schedule is aligned to neighbouring FRS to provide assurance on appropriateness 

of frequency of visits..

P
age 60



Business Fire Safety Cont’d

2. Protection Strategy – No Clear Strategy

a) Developed a policy for Business Fire Safety which acts as our strategy document;

b) The policy contains our definition of ‘Higher Risk’ based upon national, regional and local 

consultation on best practice.

3. Fire Safety Team Resourcing

a) Additional team members have been recruited into the department;

b) The department is staffed by both Grey and Green book posts to provide resilience and career 

progression to staff;

c) National Grant Funding used to improve link between Operational Intelligence and BFS..

P
age 61



Business Fire Safety Cont’d

4. Fire Safety Data Coordinator

a) BFS Team to receive update training on CFRMIS data base;

b) CFRMIS training will enable inspectors and managers to use the system more intelligently to 
support RBIP and improve consistency of data.

5. Fire Safety Team Development Programme

a) All BFS team added to the Service’s training recording system – PDR Pro;

b) All BFS team have access to the NFCC new CPD portal to view Protection Professional 
Standards;

c) All of the BFS team have achieved or are working towards ‘Competency Framework for Fire 
Regulators’..

P
age 62



Business Fire Safety Cont’d

6. Integration of BFS and Operational Risk Intelligence Team

a) Combined visits by BFS and ORI has improved our approach to Site Specific Risk Intelligence 
(SSRI) through joint visits;

b) This joint approach being applied to Control of Major Accident Hazards (COMAH) and Critical 
National Infrastructure (CNI) premises.

7. Operational Crews to Conduct Fire Protection Activities

a) Pilot run to upskill the BFS knowledge of a wholetime station to Hazard Spot fire protection 
issues;

b) Pilot was a success and has lead to training rolling out across the Service;

c) Launching a new 2 day Level 3 Certificate in Fire Safety for wholetime watches..

P
age 63



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Fire Scrutiny Committee  

Performance Report Quarter 1 2021/22 

Gloucestershire Fire and Rescue Service (GFRS)

75% (3)

75% (3)

50% (2)

50% (2)

50% (2)

25% (1)

25% (1)

25% (1)

50% (2)

25% (1)

50% (2)

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Q1 2020/21

Q2 2020/21

Q3 2020/21

Q4 2020/21

Q1 2021/22

On or Ahead of Target Within Tolerance (0 - 5% Behind Target) ≥ 5% Behind Target

Community Safety    
Percentage of  Corporate Performance  Indicators On/Ahead,Within 

Tolerance  or Behind Target  

1. Half of indicators are performing on/above target or within tolerance. Performance has been 
impacted by the forecast number of accidental dwelling fires being higher than the expected 
seasonal modelling. 

2. Timeliness of responding to accidental dwelling fires is better than target at 8 minutes 39 seconds 
in Quarter 1. An analysis has been completed to identify the factors that affect attendance times 
to an incident. Each factor and the process have been reviewed to understand if there are 
efficiency gains that can be made to assist in reducing attendance time. Performance is better 
than our comparator group (9 minutes 32 seconds) but still remains worse than national levels (7 
minutes 45 seconds).

3. There were 75 accidental dwelling fires in Quarter 1. The number of incidents is within statistical 
control limits and does not reflect a statistically significant increase in Q1. However, incidents are 
now higher than our comparator group and work is being undertaken to explore information 
relating to incidents over time to understand whether there are any learning points to be identified. 
This will form part of the risk profiling work for the County. 

4. Performance relating to the rate of Safe and Well visits (per 1,000 population) has continued to 
see small signs of recovery, up from 0.27 at the same time last year to 1.25 at the end or Quarter 
1 2021/2022. This still remains below target (2.35) and our comparator group (1.50). The number 
of visits being completed has increased significantly compared with the same period last year, 
from 174 to 803 visits and with a 36% increase compared with last quarter. Following the 
lockdown earlier this year, crews have only been able to re-start Safe and Well visits from mid-
way through this quarter. Based on progress, it is anticipated that performance will be within or 
on target by Quarter 2 due to the increase availability of operational staff.

5. GFRS have been carrying out the majority of Safe and Well visits to people in the most vulnerable 
groups (83.4%). Performance is significantly above target 75% and our comparator group 74%. 
The service has seen an increase in vulnerability during the pandemic which has meant that an 
increasing percentage of referrals are for people in high risk groups.

Page 65

Agenda Item 6



6. Throughout the pandemic, GFRS has been undertaking additional work to assist partners and 
protect those who are most vulnerable.  This has included delivery of PPE and medical 
equipment, swab tests and track and trace visits.

GFRS have also supported partners in Highways, Coroners, Care Homes and the Ambulance 
service, providing infection prevention and control training for Carers, assisting with medical 
incidents and distributing COVID-19 awareness signage along Gloucestershire’s roads. 

This work has placed a high demand on the service, with both staff and fleet deployed away 
from business as usual which will be impacting on other areas of performance while Response 
support is in place. Risk of failure of the Council or a key partner to respond to a major incident 
that results in community disruption and failure to return to normal within required timescales 
therefore remains rated as Moderate (12).

7. Although the majority of services across GCC, including GFRS, had a business continuity plan 
(BCP) in place at the end of Quarter 1 (86%), a significant proportion of plans require review 
(77%)  i.e. they have not been re-evaluated/updated in the last six months and so do not fully 
comply with the agreed Business Continuity Policy. There has been a small reduction in services 
not able to evidence a BCP (which are therefore considered as not having a BCP in place) 
(down from 12% to 11%). 

In line with best practice, robust and accurate business impact analyses (BIAs) need to be 
conducted before BCPs are developed/updated. A facilitated BIA session has taken place and 
BIAs are now being rolled out. However, it has been identified that, in addition to there being 
more BIAs to undertake than originally estimated, the BIAs are taking longer to finalise than 
anticipated. Work is underway with each Directorate to facilitate and completion of BIAs but, at 
the current pace, it is expected that all BIAs will not be completed until Q4 2021-22, with a 
consequent impact for the completion and testing of all BCPs.   
 
Notwithstanding the above, as the project progresses, more BIAs and BCPs will be updated 
across the organisation and processes will be implemented to ensure that plans are rehearsed 
and tested, resulting in greater confidence in the robustness of each service's BCM 
arrangements and a consequent overall reduction in risk impact. In the meantime, the risk of 
failure of the Council or a key partner to effectively deliver their statutory services, resulting in 
community disruption and failure of corporate objectives due to insufficient business continuity 
management arrangements continues to be rated as Moderate (12). 

8. The risk relating to insufficient workforce capacity and/or instability adversely impacting on pace 
and sustainability of improvement and contributing to increased risk to firefighter safety or 
capability to deliver emergency services to the community remained rated as Moderate (8) in 
Quarter 1. This is due to the development of the Improvement Strategy and accompanying 
Improvement Plan, as well as a short term funding commitment ahead of the annual MTFS 
process.

9. Indications since leaving the EU suggest a slowly improving picture and, through the Local 
Enterprise Partnership and Local Resilience Forum, adequate support is in place at this time to 
manage the risk of uncertainties arising from the UK leaving the EU with the possible impact on 
funding and policy change affecting Gloucestershire County Council and Local Government in 
general. This risk therefore remains rated as Low (6).

10. Governance
There is no further update on the Home Secretary’s consultative white paper expected in the 
autumn concerning the governance of Fire and Rescue services. 

Page 66



11. Portfolio Management Board
The GFRS Improvement Programme has been embedded into the Portfolio Management Office 
(PMO). The PMO is overseen by the Portfolio Management Board consisting of Principal Officers 
and Area Managers on a monthly basis and overseen by an Improvement Board on a quarterly 
basis. The Improvement Board consist of Cllr Dave Norman, Jon McGinty, Darren Skinner, Rob 
Ayliffe and Mandy Quayle and Roy Wilshire (Ex Chief Fire and Rescue Advisor). Progress is 
slow due to the physical resources available, their capacity and the large volume of improvement 
work.

12. HMICFRS
The document collection has been completed on time. This will inform HMICFRS prior to their 
inspection week commencing 27 September 2021. A detailed timeline of events is being 
finalised and all interviewees will receive an information pack concerning the lines of enquiry for 
their areas of the business.

Document collection: HMICFRS requested 62 documents areas for review (total of 124 
documents). They use this information to develop a knowledge and understanding of our 
Service before the inspection starts.

Documents were submitted ahead of schedule in August. HMI have subsequently raised 
questions relating to six of our document submissions. One area is to provide document 
evidence of how GFRS reported its Cause of Concerns (CoC) and Areas for Improvement (AFI) 
to the Fire Authority.  GFRS recognises this is as an area we need to improve upon and will now 
look to develop a reporting structure within the Fire Scrutiny Committee to update and report on 
progress made in relation to its causes for concern. 

Self-assessment: HMI recommend that each FRS uses the self-assessment as the basis for its 
presentation at the strategic briefing. BP&P are preparing the strategic brief presentation for 
SLT approval.

The self-assessment covers five main areas:
1. What key changes have there been for your FRS since the round 1 inspection – e.g. 

governance, funding, staffing?
2. What action has the service taken in response to any areas for improvement identified 

during the last inspection (round 1)?
3. What are your FRSs priorities for the coming year?
4. What action is the service taking in response to the Covid-19 inspection report?
5. Please include any other information that you feel would be useful to the inspectors to 

provide context for the operation of the FRS and its current performance.

Staff Survey: The staff survey will be open for 4 weeks starting mid-September. Further details 
to be confirmed by HMICFRS. A communications plan will be required to support this work to 
ensure the maximum number of staff complete the survey.
Full inspection: The full inspection will commence 27th September and include six weeks of 
inspection over an eight week period. This will be conducted with a blended approach of onsite 
and virtual inspection (subject to Covid restrictions). The onsite activity will primarily be reality 
testing and desktop reviews.
Planning for the timetable is well underway. The draft timetable (Attachment A below) contains 
themes for each week and detail regarding the desktop reviews and interviews. BP&P will be in 
contact with department leads at the start of September to discuss in greater depth. 

Strategic Briefing for Fire SLT members\Cllr Dave Norman with HMI Wendy Williams\John 
Robertson and the inspection team will take place on Wednesday 29th September 2021 at 
10am.

Page 67



Inspection Information Packs will be supplied to those being interviewed to support the process. 
These are currently being developed. 

Initial feedback will be given to CFO Mark Preece and Cllr Dave Norman on 1st December 2021. 
Publication of Tranche 2 FRS’s will take place in Summer 2022.

Data Collection:  HMICFRS will be carrying out their usual data collection in the Autumn. This 
will coincide with our inspection activity and teams should prepare for this additional workload.

13. Community Risk Management Plan (CRMP) 2022 – 2025
The forward plan, Cabinet report and EIA have been submitted on time. The draft CRMP is with 
GCC design who are making it more visually attractive.

The risk profiling that informs the CRMP is being further developed and requires some data from 
GCC to aid its completion.

Public consultation is planned for October to December 2021 and thereafter the final draft will 
proceed through Governance in time for go live of April 2022.

14. Community Safety
Operation Braidwood, the mutual aid agreement for SW Ambulance, is due to continue until 31st 
March 2022.

15. Safe and Well Visits

Performance relating to the rate of Safe and Well visits (per 1,000 population) has continued to 
see small signs of recovery, up from 0.27 at the same time last year to 1.25 at the end or Quarter 
1 2021/2022. This still remains below target (2.35) and our comparator group (1.50). The 
number of visits being completed has increased significantly compared with the same period 
last year, from 174 to 803 visits, with a 36% increase compared with last quarter. It is anticipated 
that performance will be within or on target by Quarter 2 due to the increase availability of 
operational staff.

The majority of Safe and Well visits are to people in the most vulnerable groups (83.4%). This 
is significantly above the target of 75% and above our comparator group at 74%. There has 
been an increase in vulnerability during the pandemic which has meant that an increasing 
percentage of referrals are for people in high risk groups.

16. Prevention
GFRS, in preparation for its forthcoming HMICFRS Inspection, have undertaken a peer 
assessment of its Business Fire Safety arrangements. This was provided by colleagues from 
Warwickshire FRS, Oxfordshire FRS and overseen by the Local Government Association. We 
have received informal feedback and will receive a written report in due course. This will inform 
a number of further actions that we will address going forward.

17. Firefighter Recruitment
12 candidates from the successful pool of 40 are at Moreton-in Marsh Fire Service College 
undertaking firefighter training as apprentices.

18. Financial Expenditure 

Revenue Budget: The Community Safety Directorate is forecasting an overspend of £77k 
including estimated costs attributed to COVID 19 of £69k; therefore, excluding COVID 19 costs, 
there is an underlying overspend of £8k. 

Page 68



The GFRS forecast shows an overspend of £71k with COVID-19 related issues totalling £69k. 
The position excluding COVID-19, is an overspend of £2k. 

There are variances across all cost centres within GFRS mainly due to staff movements, both 
leavers and new starters. The position evens out overall giving a virtual on-target outturn position 
of £2k overspend.  

The Coroner’s Service is forecasting a small overspend of £6k due to increased expenditure on 
medical fees.

The Trading Standards Service is forecasting an on target spend.

The CPT is forecasting an on target spend.

Capital: Over the next 3 years GFRS will be submitting just over £2mill in capital bids. This 
investment is crucial in terms of maintaining operational capability within response, prevention 
and protection activities that require funding. 

MTFS: Our improvement journey is predicated on the MTFS bid totalling £815k being supported 
as follows:

• Learning & Development £333k
• On-Call Training £184k
• PPE £65k
• Prevention: Young Person Support Officer £32k 
• Prevention: 2 x Community Safety Officers £59k
• Prevention:  Road Safety Coordinator £42k
• Portfolio Management Support Officer £29k
• Logistics & Equipment Supervisor £35k
• Pension Administrator £36

Page 69



HMICFRS Round 2 Inspection

Full Inspection
Week No. Date Time Activity Comments
Week 1
27/09/21

29/09/2021 09:00

10:00

10:15 – 11:45

11:45 – 12:00
12:00 – 13:00

13:10

Strategic Briefing Morning 
HMI team to arrive at 09:00 
(4xHMICFRS). Need ability to dial in 
if required.
HMI Wendy Williams arrives at 
GFRS (venue to be confirmed)
Strategic briefing presentation 
(includes SLT & Cllr David Norman) 
Break
HMI Wendy Williams interview 
with Cllr David Norman
End 

Face to face

Need location 
2 weeks 
before.

14:00 – 15:30 Review of Staff-hub and web site. 
Interview with comms person\daily 
news releases person. Need 
someone who can navigate site. 
(Note: Heads of 
comms/engagement to be 
interviewed later in process).

Face to face

14:00 – 15.30 Interview Control Manger - Janet 
Williams

Face to face

31/09/2021
Friday

(possibly 
also 28th)

TBC Partner Agency interviews 
(possibly on 28th x3 & 31st x3)
Arrange a list of partners:
 Local authority – building 

control
 Police
 Ambulance
 Road safety
 Collaboration

Supply a list to HMICFRS

Virtual 
meetings 
possibly by 
phone.

Week 2
04/10/21

Themes for this week include:
 Efficiency
 Estates
 ICT
 Fleet

05/10/2021
Tuesday

09:30 –11:00 Head of ICT 
Planning arrangements, aspirations 
in CRMP, how are we getting value 
for money, strategic planning of 
the Service.

Virtual

13:00 – 14:30 Head of Fleet 
Planning arrangements, aspirations 
in CRMP, how are we getting value 
for money, strategic planning of 
the Service.

Virtual

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 70



Full Inspection
Week No. Date Time Activity Comments

13:00 – 14:30 Head of Performance
Performance information lead 
(Area Manager). How are outputs 
used? 
Clive Webber

Level 4 Incident Command reality 
testing. 
Note: This will take place with a 
selection of staff following their 
interviews (will cover level 4, 3, 2, 1 
over inspection)
PO – x1
1xAM
2xGM
3xSM
6x level 1 (WM or CM) done on 
station visits (2WT, 4 on-call)

Virtual

06/10/2021
Wednesday

09:30 – 11:00 Head of Estates
Planning arrangements, aspirations 
in CRMP, how are we getting value 
for money, strategic planning of 
the Service.

Virtual

09:30 - 11:00 Interview with Pete Bungard MS Teams 
meeting 
booked

Afternoon Nothing planned at present
07/10/2021
Thursday

09:30  11:00 Head of Finance 
(Maria Boon & Paul Blacker (or 
suitable person from GCC))
Detail of how the Service uses its 
money and aligns to 
CRMP\strategic approach to 
Finance.

Virtual

09:30 – 11:00 Protection Manager
Interview about process for 
allocating audits and following 
them up. Station Manager level.
This leads into desktop work next 
week.

Virtual

09:30 – 11:00 Prevention staff interviews
Lead for Home Fire Safety visits, 
Road Safety, SkillZone (more 
details to follow).

Virtual

Week 3
18/10/2021

18/10/21 Themes for this week will include 
desktop reviews on:
 CRMP

Face to face

Page 71



Full Inspection
Week No. Date Time Activity Comments

 Protection 
 Risk Information
 Major Incident 
 Debriefing 
 Prevention 
 Attendance Management 
 Diversity 
 Competence 
 Promotion Process 

18/10/2021
Monday

14:00 - 16:30 CRMP Session 1. 
Walk through: risk analysis, 
political approval, links to 
response, protection, prevention 
strategy, how it links to finance, 
Required: 
Lead for comms (community – 
public)
Head of IT – analysis (but its 
systems and data to gain usable 
information – Luke rather than 
Rob).
Head of Performance – how we 
monitor outcomes - Clive
Head of finance – Maria
Head of CRMP – Senior person – 
making sure there is political 
engagement, process.
Head of Training/HR (e.g. how we 
would recruit people with better 
skills for certain prevention tasks if 
that’s been identified).

Face to face

14:00 – 16:00 Protection Manager (SM)
 Protection – Desktop 

review of processes and 
systems we use

Their role as a manager and how 
they manage the function.
Followed by:
Protection – Desktop review of 
processes and systems we use.
Note: Select 20 audits or 
inspections. Look at 
documentation – random sample 
audits for high risk, after the fire, 
audits resulting in formal outcome, 
work on high rise/high risk 
buildings.

Face to face

19/10/2021
Tuesday

09:00 – 11:30
13:00 – 16:00

Protection Desktop review
2 models that we could consider:
Fire safety database – trail of 
letters – sit with this person.
Or sit with inspection officer and 
they show the team the records.

Face to face

Page 72



Full Inspection
Week No. Date Time Activity Comments

HMI ask for records to be pulled up 
and shown on screen – if Stu B, 
have inspection officer with him to 
discuss how decisions made.

13:00 – 16:00 CRMP session 2. 
CRMP (HMICFRS x2 staff)
Head of:
 response
 protection
 prevention
 performance

Face to face

20/10/2021
Wednesday 

09:30 – 11:00 SSRI’s 
 Risk Information – review 

site specific risk 
information. FF’s will be 
asked to demonstrate how 
risk information is 
accessed.

Station Manager level 

Face to face

13:00 – 15:30 SSRI desktop review
Permanent records high-rise, 
3 commercial buildings that have 
had fire, 
4 short term records (public event 
x2, 
2x home oxygen users (Donna) – 
do we manage this information in 
different ways (PORIS)? 
Staff member needs to be able to 
operate database.

Face to face

09:30 – 11:00 
(may 
overrun) 

Major Incident  desktop review
 Major Incident – 3 to 4 

people will be selected. To 
include incidents that align 
to the community risk 
register. HMI will review 
how the Service 
approaches major 
incidents.

Required: 
Senior response manager – links to 
LRF. 
Officer with good understanding of 
Major Incident plans.
Head of response, lead NILO, 
emergency planning officer for LRF. 
May need to have someone from 
L&D regarding training and 
preparation. 
1x incident in high-rise building.
1x incident wide area flooding (in 
last 12-18 months)

Face to face

Page 73



Full Inspection
Week No. Date Time Activity Comments

1x MTA incident or exercise. If 
don’t have one, an incident linked 
to community risk register.

Wednesday 13:00 – 15:30 Debrief desktop review
Debriefing – 4 to 6 debriefs picked 
and reviewed. How learning is 
identified and communicated 
across the organisation.
Someone to explain debrief 
process and someone to show 
records - 10 records. 
HMICFRS will view IRS data then 
review:
 4 pump incidents
 2 domestic
 2 commercial
 1 exercise cross border
 1 fatality
 2 incidents where ops 

discretion used
 1x rescue non fire. 

Possible IC reality test (not 
competence-based, but to show 
preparedness) Level 3

Face to face

21/10/2021
Thursday

09:30 – 11:30 Prevention desktop review
 Prevention – desk top 

review. Referrals selected 
and reviewed to include – 
process & visit.

With team manager 
Home fire safety – broad function 
(Donna Potts), how it is structured, 
how we understand risk, 
partnerships, performance. 

Face to face

13:00 – 15:30 Prevention desktop review
18 records:
10 Safe and Well delivered by 
station and CSA.
5 in high-rise
3 post fire – killed, rescued, 
seriously injured
Someone to pull records up and 
someone to explain process used. 

Face to face

09:30 – 11:00 
(could be 
extended)

Attendance Management
Approach to attendance 
management, application of policy. 
HMI will select 6 cases of absence 
and review how it was dealt with. 
HMICFRS will request all closed 
cases.

Face to face

Page 74



Full Inspection
Week No. Date Time Activity Comments

Someone who understands 
absence management process.
List of everyone who has been 
managed, managerial intervention 
(welfare, support), sick/long-term 
absence, but also repeated sickness 
absence. 

13:00 – 15:30 Promotion Process 
A list of promotions and temporary 
promotions will be requested from 
the last 12 months. 4 – 6 will be 
reviewed against our policy.

3 promotions in last 12-18 months. 
Look at records/system.
Advert, application of procedure, 
1x supervisory, 1x middle, 1x senior
Someone who understands the 
system and process to answer any 
questions

Face to face

22/10/2021
Friday

09:30 – 11:30 Competence (Training Records) 
HMI will view our training records. 
This will include how non-ops staff 
training is recorded. They will 
review how we deliver risk critical 
training and how we keep staff in 
frequency.

Look at training record system:
Does training for green book get 
recorded on PDRpro? Check this.
HMI look at 20 records – WT, on-
call, all levels FF up, include 
control, 2 non ops staff.
Required: admin for PDRpro 
system – plus someone to explain 
& answer questions (i.e. when staff 
are due for revalidation) 

Face to face
(could move 
to virtual). 
Need to test 
PDRpro 
screen share.

09:30 - 11:00 Diversity – Equality Impact 
Assessments
(EIA’s – HMI will request copies of 
completed forms). 3 or 4 EIA’s will 
be requested.

List of all new policies, proposals 
agreed in last 18 months. HMI will 
ask for the associated equality 
impact assessment with these.

Someone who has knowledge of 
how these are completed and 

Face to face
(could move 
to Virtual)

Page 75



Full Inspection
Week No. Date Time Activity Comments

someone who can show these. HMI 
will look at 3.

Week 4
25/10/2021

Themes for this week:
 LRF lead
 Diversity Focus Group
 Head of H&S

26/10/2021 
Tuesday

09:30 - 11:00 Diversity focus group 
ED&I working group (8-10 people, 
not senior leaders (i.e. not AM or 
above) or HR)

V

27/10/2021
Wednesday

09:30 – 11:00 LFR lead
Relationship with LFR from GFRS
Questions regarding major 
incidents, multi-agency and 
learning (what the Service is doing). 
GFRS to explain their role in LRF 
forum.

V

27/10/2021
Wednesday

09:30 – 11:00 Head of H&S 
The person who oversees 
workplace risk assessments, H&S 
investigation, accidents and near 
miss, staff trained to undertake 
responsibility, fitness testing. 
Oversight of investigations. 
Organisational approach.
E.g. – commission of a new fire 
engine – person responsible for 
H&S approach, risk assessments 
etc.
Corporate advice to SLT (Clive)
Need to demonstrate we have 
covered gap of H&S advisor 
leaving.

V

Week 5
08/11/2021

Notes: Three HMI teams will be on-
site for the week.  Face to face 
preferred

Reality Testing:
 Meeting Whole-time & On-

Call Watches (6x on-call, 5x 
W/T)

 Focus Groups – SM’s, 
WM’s, W/T FF’s & On-call 
FF’s, Green Book.

08/11/2021 Evening Cinderford on-call station F2F

Page 76



Full Inspection
Week No. Date Time Activity Comments

Monday
08/11/2021
Monday

Evening Gloucester North on-call station F2F

09/11/2021
Tuesday

Day, time  
TBC

1x WT station F2F

09/11/2021 
Tuesday 

Day, time 
TBC

1x WT station F2F

09/11/2021 
Tuesday

Day, time  
TBC

1x WT station F2F

09/11/2021 
Tuesday

Evening Nailsworth on-call station 
* visited last time

F2F

09/11/2021 
Tuesday

Evening Stow on-call station F2F

10/11/2021
Wednesday

Day, time 
TBC

1x WT station F2F

10/11/2021
Wednesday

Day, time 
TBC

1x WT station F2F

10/11/2021
Wednesday

Likely to be 
afternoon

Protection team reality testing – 3 
or 4 inspectors - determined by 
earlier inspection meetings

F2F

10/11/2021
Wednesday

Likely to be 
afternoon

Prevention team reality testing – 3 
or 4 staff - determined by earlier 
inspection meetings

F2F

10/11/2021
Wednesday

Evening Tewksbury on-call station
*visited last time

F2F

10/11/2021
Wednesday

Evening Wotton Under Edge on-call station F2F

11/11/2021
Thursday

Time TBC WT firefighter focus group 8-10 
staff from across organisation

F2F

11/11/2021
Thursday

Time TBC Watch Managers from both WT & 
on-call focus group (8-10), mix of 
Ops & HQ

F2F

11/11/2021
Thursday

Time TBC Station Manager focus group (6 
people)

F2F

11/11/2021
Thursday

Time TBC, 
possibly 
evening

On-all firefighter focus group (8-10 
staff)

F2F

12/11/2021
Friday

Morning - 
Time TBC

Non-ops staff focus group:
workshops, Skillzone, HR, IT, green 
book etc.

V

Week 6
15/11/2021

Heads of department interview 
week:
 Diversity 
 Training
 HR
 Occupational Health
 Response 
 Prevention 

Page 77



Full Inspection
Week No. Date Time Activity Comments

 Protection 
 Communications
 CFO

15/11/2021
Monday

13:00 – 14:30 OHU lead 
Service approach to OHU services 
and support: what happens to staff 
off sick, wellbeing, critical incident 
support, how does the service 
monitor fitness levels, how are 
things monitor and reported to SLT, 
etc.?

V

15/11/2021
Monday

13:00 – 14:30 Diversity lead 
Advisor or Service lead – most up 
to date person with information. 
Equality duty, staff training, how 
dealing with EDI issues of concern, 
promotions.

V

16/11/2021
Tuesday

09:30 – 11:00 Head of HR interview
Learning & development, 
wellbeing, NFCC initiatives, support 
for staff with protected 
characteristics, PDR’s, behaviours, 
identify those with potential, 
career pathways, ensuring 
productive workforce, corporate 
approach – AM Adam Openshaw 
(possibly).

V

16/11/2021
Tuesday

09:30 – 11:00 Head of Comms Communications
Corporate approach – what media 
training have we done?, 
accessibility of information to all 
staff etc. (possible Carole Pittaway) 
Check this with Adam as clashes 
with other interview if him

V

16/11/2021
Tuesday

13:00 – 14:30 Head of Prevention
Ian Tonner (possibly Donna Pots)
Corporate approach, training of 
staff, collaboration work, how do 
GFRS determine level of 
community risk? 

16/11/2021
Tuesday

13:00 – 14:30 Head of Response 
Corporate approach – community 
engagement to build risk profile, 
ops commanders, maintenance of 
competence, supplement 
resources, preparedness, 
collaboration, major incidents

Page 78



Full Inspection
Week No. Date Time Activity Comments

17/11/2021
Wednesday

09:30 – 11:00 Head of Training – (L&D)
Adam Openshaw
Corporate approach, staff 
competence, L&D links to IRMP, 
management support, alignment to 
NOG, link to major and multi-
agency incidents

17/11/2021
Wednesday

09:30 – 11:00 Head of Protection 
Ian Tonner
Corporate approach, competence, 
strategy, risk based inspection 
programme, Central Government 
funding, enforcement and business 
engagement

18/11/2021
Thursday

09:00 – 11:00 CFO Interview Booked

Feedback 
day

01/12/2021 Wednesday 
1st 
December 
14:00hrs 

Initial Feedback to the CFO & Cllr 
Dave Norman

Booked

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



Finance, Performance & Risk Meeting
Performance Annex

Quarter 1 2021/22
Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue Service

Purpose of the Report

To provide a strategic overview of the Council's performance for Gloucestershire Fire
& Rescue Service for Quarter 1 2021/22

The following scorecards are enclosed:

Page no.
Key to Symbols 2
Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue Service 3
Strategic Risk 4

Prepared by the Performance and Improvement Team

1

P
age 81

javascript:app.OpenBookmark(1,2243,true,null,null,false,'','');


Risk Impact/Consequence

Likelihood 1
Insignificant

2
Minor

3
Moderate

4
Major

5
Critical

Almost
certain
(5)

5 10 15 20 25

Likely
(4)

4 8 12 16 20

Probable
(3)

3 6 9 12 15

Possible
(2)

2 4 6 8 10

Rare
(1)

1 2 3 4 5

Level of
Risk

Score

Low 1  6
Moderate 7 – 12
High 13 – 25

Performance better than target

Performance worse than target

Performance significantly worse than target

No information

Missing target

No value

Value Increasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Decreasing (Smaller is Better)

Value Increasing (Bigger is Better)

Value Decreasing (Bigger is Better)

No change

Bigger is better A bigger value for this measure is good

Smaller is
better

A smaller value for this measure is good

Plan is best Where it is best for performance to be on target rather than above or below

Reporting Basis

Year to Date Performance accumulated over the year

Rolling Year Average performance over a 12 month
period

Annual Performance measured once a year

Latest
Quarter

Performance this quarter

Snapshot Performance at a particular point in time

Forecast Predicted position at the end of the year

Key to Symbols

Key to Symbols  Risk

Risk Rating
(calculated by multiplying the Impact with

the Likelihood of each risk)

The Gloucestershire Risk Matrix

2

P
age 82



Gloucestershire Fire & Rescue Service

GFRS

% of Safe and Well visits
undertaken to those in high
risk groups

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

81.6% 86.0% 86.4% 85.3% 83.4% 75.0%
This is excellent and shows that our referral pathways are
highlighting the correct properties for us to attend.

74.0%

Number of Safe and Well visits
undertaken per 1,000
population (HFSC)

Bigger is
Better

Latest
Quarter

0.27 0.82 0.91 0.93 1.25 2.35

We are catching up after the initial lockdown with crews
only starting to do S&W mid way through the Quarter, this
work is in hand and we are looking to catch up by Q2 due
to the increase availability of operational staff.

1.50

Number of Accidental
Dwelling Fires

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter

53 63 62 68 75 52

This is a concern, more work is needed to explore the rise
and to discuss where the extra incidents have occurred.
Donna Potts to work with control to explore the numbers
and look for any patterns to assist campaigns to reduce the
current rise.

66

Average Response times to
dwelling fires

Smaller is
Better

Latest
Quarter

9.32 8.47 10.27 9.10 8.39 9.00 9.32

Quarterly Trend Analysis  Against a Target
Good
Performance
High/Low

Reporting
Basis

Qtr Jun20 Qtr Sep20 Qtr Dec20 Qtr Mar21 Qtr Jun21
Target Qtr
Jun21

Comments Qtr Jun21 Comparator

3

P
age 83

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col17')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col18')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('C2','Col19')


SR10.1

Failure of the Council or a key partner
to effectively respond to a major
incident such as flooding that results in
community disruption and failure to
return to normal, within required
timescales.

Preece,
Mark

High 20 Moderate 9 High 15 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12
Capacity remains affected due to continuing
COVID19 responses

SR10.4

Due to insufficient business continuity
management arrangements failure of
the Council or a key partner to
effectively deliver their statutory
services, resulting in community
disruption and failure of corporate
objectives.

Preece,
Mark

High 16 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12

The latest management information (MI) dated
29/06/2021 indicates that, although some
86% of services across GCC, incl. GFRS, have
a business continuity plan (BCP) in place, the
majority of plans  77% overall  require
review (i.e. they have not been reevaluated /
updated in the last six months and so do not at
present fully comply with the agreed Business
Continuity Policy).  There has been a small
reduction  from 12% down to 11%  in
services not able to evidence a BCP (which are
therefore considered as not having a BCP in
place).  The preceding figures support the risk
assessment ('Risk Rating') for this quarter. In
line with best practice, robust and accurate
business impact analyses (BIAs) need to be
conducted before BCPs are developed /
updated.  BIAs are now being rolled out
although it has been identified that, in addition
to there being more BIAs to undertake than
originally estimated, those responsible for
completing the BIAs are taking a unexpected
length of time to return a finalised BIA (the
average elapsed time from a facilitated BIA
session to delivery by the plan owner of a
signed off BIA is six weeks), with extra /
unplanned time being spent by the lead officer
for BCM chasing up plan owners for their BIAs
in that intervening period.  Work is underway
with each Directorate to identify any
opportunities for "working smarter" in the
facilitation and completion of BIAs but, at the
current pace, it is expected that all BIAs will
not be completed until Q4 202122, with a
consequent impact for the completion and
testing of all BCPs.     Notwithstanding the
above, as the project progresses, more BIAs
and BCPs will be updated across the
organisation and processes will be
implemented to ensure that plans are
rehearsed and tested, resulting in greater
confidence in the robustness of each service's
BCM arrangements and a consequent overall
reduction in risk impact.  However, business
continuity management is not a "preventative"
discipline and does not aim to reduce the
likelihood of disruption.  It should also be
noted that GCC Corporate Leadership Team
has agreed, per the council's Business
Continuity Policy, that it is neither desirable
nor practicable to entirely eliminate low
frequency but high impact disruption risks at
source (the appropriate response to such risks
being for GCC to plan to react effectively
should the risks be realised  preparing to
minimise the impact of the incident and to
promptly recover the affected activities, i.e.
business continuity planning).

SR10.6

Insufficient workforce capacity and/or
instability adversely impacting on pace
and sustainability of improvement and
contributing to increased risk to
firefighter safety or capability to deliver
emergency services to the community

Preece,
Mark

High 20 Moderate 12 Moderate 8 Moderate 8

Development of Improvement Strategy
accompanying Improvement Plan & short term
funding commitment ahead of annual MTFS
process.

SR13.1

Uncertainties arising from the UK
leaving the EU with the possible impact
on funding and policy change affecting
Gloucestershire County Council and
Local Government in general

Preece,
Mark

High 15 Moderate 10 High 15 Moderate 10 Low 6 Low 6

Indications since leaving EU suggest a slowly
improving picture & through the Local
Enterprise Partnership and Local Resilience
Forum adequate support is in place at this time

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats

Ref. Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Sep20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Dec20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Mar21

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun21

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats (New Qtr 3 19/20)

Ref. Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Sep20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Dec20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Mar21

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun21

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Reponse & Business Continuity Threats (New Qtr 3 20/21)

Ref. Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Residual
Risk Qtr
Dec20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Mar21

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun21

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions

Strategic Risk 13: Uncertainties arising from the UK leaving the EU

Ref. Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Sep20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Dec20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Mar21

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun21

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions

4

P
age 84

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D3','Col11')


SR10.1

Failure of the Council or a key partner
to effectively respond to a major
incident such as flooding that results in
community disruption and failure to
return to normal, within required
timescales.

Preece,
Mark

High 20 Moderate 9 High 15 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12
Capacity remains affected due to continuing
COVID19 responses

SR10.4

Due to insufficient business continuity
management arrangements failure of
the Council or a key partner to
effectively deliver their statutory
services, resulting in community
disruption and failure of corporate
objectives.

Preece,
Mark

High 16 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12

The latest management information (MI) dated
29/06/2021 indicates that, although some
86% of services across GCC, incl. GFRS, have
a business continuity plan (BCP) in place, the
majority of plans  77% overall  require
review (i.e. they have not been reevaluated /
updated in the last six months and so do not at
present fully comply with the agreed Business
Continuity Policy).  There has been a small
reduction  from 12% down to 11%  in
services not able to evidence a BCP (which are
therefore considered as not having a BCP in
place).  The preceding figures support the risk
assessment ('Risk Rating') for this quarter. In
line with best practice, robust and accurate
business impact analyses (BIAs) need to be
conducted before BCPs are developed /
updated.  BIAs are now being rolled out
although it has been identified that, in addition
to there being more BIAs to undertake than
originally estimated, those responsible for
completing the BIAs are taking a unexpected
length of time to return a finalised BIA (the
average elapsed time from a facilitated BIA
session to delivery by the plan owner of a
signed off BIA is six weeks), with extra /
unplanned time being spent by the lead officer
for BCM chasing up plan owners for their BIAs
in that intervening period.  Work is underway
with each Directorate to identify any
opportunities for "working smarter" in the
facilitation and completion of BIAs but, at the
current pace, it is expected that all BIAs will
not be completed until Q4 202122, with a
consequent impact for the completion and
testing of all BCPs.     Notwithstanding the
above, as the project progresses, more BIAs
and BCPs will be updated across the
organisation and processes will be
implemented to ensure that plans are
rehearsed and tested, resulting in greater
confidence in the robustness of each service's
BCM arrangements and a consequent overall
reduction in risk impact.  However, business
continuity management is not a "preventative"
discipline and does not aim to reduce the
likelihood of disruption.  It should also be
noted that GCC Corporate Leadership Team
has agreed, per the council's Business
Continuity Policy, that it is neither desirable
nor practicable to entirely eliminate low
frequency but high impact disruption risks at
source (the appropriate response to such risks
being for GCC to plan to react effectively
should the risks be realised  preparing to
minimise the impact of the incident and to
promptly recover the affected activities, i.e.
business continuity planning).

SR10.6

Insufficient workforce capacity and/or
instability adversely impacting on pace
and sustainability of improvement and
contributing to increased risk to
firefighter safety or capability to deliver
emergency services to the community

Preece,
Mark

High 20 Moderate 12 Moderate 8 Moderate 8

Development of Improvement Strategy
accompanying Improvement Plan & short term
funding commitment ahead of annual MTFS
process.

SR13.1

Uncertainties arising from the UK
leaving the EU with the possible impact
on funding and policy change affecting
Gloucestershire County Council and
Local Government in general

Preece,
Mark

High 15 Moderate 10 High 15 Moderate 10 Low 6 Low 6

Indications since leaving EU suggest a slowly
improving picture & through the Local
Enterprise Partnership and Local Resilience
Forum adequate support is in place at this time

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats

Ref. Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Sep20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Dec20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Mar21

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun21

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats (New Qtr 3 19/20)

Ref. Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Sep20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Dec20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Mar21

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun21

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Reponse & Business Continuity Threats (New Qtr 3 20/21)

Ref. Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Residual
Risk Qtr
Dec20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Mar21

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun21

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions

Strategic Risk 13: Uncertainties arising from the UK leaving the EU

Ref. Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Sep20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Dec20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Mar21

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun21

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions

5

P
age 85

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col15')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col13')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('E3','Col11')


SR10.1

Failure of the Council or a key partner
to effectively respond to a major
incident such as flooding that results in
community disruption and failure to
return to normal, within required
timescales.

Preece,
Mark

High 20 Moderate 9 High 15 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12
Capacity remains affected due to continuing
COVID19 responses

SR10.4

Due to insufficient business continuity
management arrangements failure of
the Council or a key partner to
effectively deliver their statutory
services, resulting in community
disruption and failure of corporate
objectives.

Preece,
Mark

High 16 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12 Moderate 12

The latest management information (MI) dated
29/06/2021 indicates that, although some
86% of services across GCC, incl. GFRS, have
a business continuity plan (BCP) in place, the
majority of plans  77% overall  require
review (i.e. they have not been reevaluated /
updated in the last six months and so do not at
present fully comply with the agreed Business
Continuity Policy).  There has been a small
reduction  from 12% down to 11%  in
services not able to evidence a BCP (which are
therefore considered as not having a BCP in
place).  The preceding figures support the risk
assessment ('Risk Rating') for this quarter. In
line with best practice, robust and accurate
business impact analyses (BIAs) need to be
conducted before BCPs are developed /
updated.  BIAs are now being rolled out
although it has been identified that, in addition
to there being more BIAs to undertake than
originally estimated, those responsible for
completing the BIAs are taking a unexpected
length of time to return a finalised BIA (the
average elapsed time from a facilitated BIA
session to delivery by the plan owner of a
signed off BIA is six weeks), with extra /
unplanned time being spent by the lead officer
for BCM chasing up plan owners for their BIAs
in that intervening period.  Work is underway
with each Directorate to identify any
opportunities for "working smarter" in the
facilitation and completion of BIAs but, at the
current pace, it is expected that all BIAs will
not be completed until Q4 202122, with a
consequent impact for the completion and
testing of all BCPs.     Notwithstanding the
above, as the project progresses, more BIAs
and BCPs will be updated across the
organisation and processes will be
implemented to ensure that plans are
rehearsed and tested, resulting in greater
confidence in the robustness of each service's
BCM arrangements and a consequent overall
reduction in risk impact.  However, business
continuity management is not a "preventative"
discipline and does not aim to reduce the
likelihood of disruption.  It should also be
noted that GCC Corporate Leadership Team
has agreed, per the council's Business
Continuity Policy, that it is neither desirable
nor practicable to entirely eliminate low
frequency but high impact disruption risks at
source (the appropriate response to such risks
being for GCC to plan to react effectively
should the risks be realised  preparing to
minimise the impact of the incident and to
promptly recover the affected activities, i.e.
business continuity planning).

SR10.6

Insufficient workforce capacity and/or
instability adversely impacting on pace
and sustainability of improvement and
contributing to increased risk to
firefighter safety or capability to deliver
emergency services to the community

Preece,
Mark

High 20 Moderate 12 Moderate 8 Moderate 8

Development of Improvement Strategy
accompanying Improvement Plan & short term
funding commitment ahead of annual MTFS
process.

SR13.1

Uncertainties arising from the UK
leaving the EU with the possible impact
on funding and policy change affecting
Gloucestershire County Council and
Local Government in general

Preece,
Mark

High 15 Moderate 10 High 15 Moderate 10 Low 6 Low 6

Indications since leaving EU suggest a slowly
improving picture & through the Local
Enterprise Partnership and Local Resilience
Forum adequate support is in place at this time

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats

Ref. Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Sep20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Dec20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Mar21

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun21

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Response & Business Continuity Threats (New Qtr 3 19/20)

Ref. Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Sep20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Dec20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Mar21

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun21

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions

Strategic Risk 10: Emergency Reponse & Business Continuity Threats (New Qtr 3 20/21)

Ref. Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Residual
Risk Qtr
Dec20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Mar21

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun21

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions

Strategic Risk 13: Uncertainties arising from the UK leaving the EU

Ref. Risk Owner
Inherent
Risk

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Sep20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Dec20

Residual
Risk Qtr
Mar21

Residual
Risk Qtr
Jun21

Direction
of Travel

Mitigating Actions

6

P
age 86

javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col12')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col14')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('A4','Col11')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col1')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col2')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col3')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col4')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col5')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col6')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col7')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col8')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col9')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col10')
javascript:sortRowsViewMode('D4','Col11')


Fire and Rescue Scrutiny Committee - Work Plan 2021/22

10 September 2021 12 November 2021         14 January 2022

 Community Risk Management Plan 

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

 Recruitment issues within the Fire Services, 
particularly relating to BAME 

 Overview of the financial health of GFRS, 
including any pressures 

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

4 March 2022 27 May 2022 15 July 2022 

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

Standard items 

 GFRS Performance Data and Updates

Future Items 

1 Consultative White Paper on fire 
services reform 

Additional meeting 
to be arranged.

5

2 HMICFRS inspection feedback Additional meeting 
to be arranged – 
exempt session. 

6

3
Workshops, visits and member development sessions

4 1 The Role of Elected Members in 
Emergencies – Development Session

Thurs 7 Oct 2021 
at 10am via Webex

P
age 87

A
genda Item

 7



P
age 88


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes
	FRSC Actions - 16 July 2021

	4 Community Risk Management Plan
	2. EIA-CRMP 2022 - 2025 for Fire Scrutiny
	EIA-CRMP 2022 - 2025 v3
	Signed page

	3.  GFRS CRMP 2022-2025 for Fire Scrutiny

	5 HMICFRS Update
	6 GFRS Performance Data and Updates
	5. GFRS Q1 Scorecard

	7 Work Plan 2021/22

